Minutes of the Work Session of the Planning Commission of the County of 1 Henrico held in the County Manager's Conference Room, County Administration 2 Building in the Government Center at Parham and Hungary Spring Roads. 3 beginning at 5:30 p.m., on August 11, 2016. 4 5 Members Present: Mr. C. W. Archer, C.P.C., Chairman (Fairfield) Ms. Bonnie-Leigh Jones, C.P.C., Vice-Chairman (Tuckahoe) Mrs. Sandra M. Marshall (Three Chopt) Mr. Eric S. Leabough, C.P.C. (Varina) Mr. Robert H. Witte, Jr., (Brookland) Mr. R. Joseph Emerson, Jr., AICP. Director of Planning, Secretary

Members Absent:

Mr. Frank J. Thornton, (Fairfield)

Board of Supervisors' Representative

Also Present:

Mr. Tom Tokarz, Deputy County Attorney

Mr. Andrew Newby, County Attorney

Ms. Jean M. Moore, Assistant Director of Planning Mr. James P. Strauss, PLA, Senior Principal Planner Ms. Leslie A. News, PLA, Senior Principal Planner Mr. Benjamin Blankinship, Senior Principal Planner

Ms. Sylvia Ray, Recording Secretary

6

The Commission convened a work session in the County Manager's Conference Room at 5:42 p.m.

8 9 10

Mr. Archer - I call this work session of the Henrico Planning Commission to order. Mr. Secretary.

11 12

13 Mr. Emerson - Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The first two items on the 14 agenda will be presented by Mr. Ben Blankinship and the latter, by Ms. Leslie 15 News.

16 17

18

Mr. Blankinship provided two presentations introducing recommendations for amendments to the Zoning Ordinance. The first with regard to the regulation of signs, and the second, in regard to setbacks for front porches on dwellings.

19 20

These ordinance items require further review and consideration prior to approval.
An additional work session, tentatively scheduled for September 15, 2016, will be decided upon at tonight's meeting.

24 25

26

Ms. News presented an amendment to Planning Commission Rules and Regulations regarding Transfer of Approval of a Plan of Development.

The amendment regarding Transfer of Approval of a Plan of Development was recommended for approval.

Mr. Archer - We have a motion by Mr. Witte, a second by Mrs. Marshall. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

Mr. Emerson - The Commission approved an amendment to their rules and regulations as per suggestion B, by staff, which reads: "...the change of approval by the Director of Planning, provided the property is transferred to new ownership no later than 24 months following initial construction plan approval."

Mr. Archer discussed the effects and concerns regarding changes made years ago in the rezoning classifications, specifically, the removal of R-3, R-4, and R-4A, due to the potential for increased density. He stated the increase in construction of townhomes has contributed significantly to density and thought should be given to reconsidering this change. He also expressed concern the removal of these classifications has hampered building by those who may prefer a smaller lot and independent living.

The Commission discussed how these changes affected the development community, what drives the appropriateness of density, the benefits of building townhomes, design standards, and if all of this is considered when developing the Comprehensive Plan. It was discussed there may be opportunity to address this with the upcoming update to the zoning and subdivision ordinance.

Upon his arrival, at 6:27 p.m. (due to prior commitments), Mr. Thornton offered comments on the topics discussed. He too felt more flexibility was available when R-3, R-4, and R-4A were allowed. He also reiterated the importance of considering the lifestyles and buying styles of millennials, and recommended while picking what is good for today, we consider tomorrow as well.

The Commission recessed their meeting at 6:34 p.m.

THE PLANNING	COMMISSION	RECONVENED	AT	7:00	P.M.	FOLL	OWING	A
WORK SESSION								

66

67

68

62

Minutes of the regular monthly meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Henrico held in the County Administration Building in the Government Center at Parham and Hungary Spring Roads, beginning at 7:00 p.m. August 11, 2016. Display Notice having been published in the Richmond Times-Dispatch on July 25, 2016 and August 1, 2016.

69 70

Members Present: Mr. C. W. Archer, C.P.C., Chair (Fairfield)

Ms. Bonnie-Leigh Jones, C.P.C., Vice-Chair (Tuckahoe)

Mr. Eric Leabough, C.P.C. (Varina) Mrs. Sandra M. Marshall (Three Chopt) Mr. Robert H. Witte, Jr., (Brookland)

Mr. R. Joseph Emerson, Jr., AICP, Director of Planning,

Secretary

Mr. Frank J. Thornton (Fairfield)

Board of Supervisors' Representative

Also Present:

Ms. Jean M. Moore, Assistant Director of Planning Mr. James P. Strauss, PLA, Senior Principal Planner Ms. Rosemary D. Deemer, AICP, County Planner

Mr. Benjamin Sehl, County Planner Mr. Livingston Lewis, County Planner Mrs. Lisa Blankinship, County Planner Mr. William Moffett, County Planner Ms. Erin Puckett, County Planner

Mr. John Cejka, County Traffic Engineer, Public Works

Officer LaPrade, Division of Police Ms. Sylvia Ray, Recording Secretary

71 72

73

Mr. Frank J. Thornton, the Board of Supervisors' representative, abstains on all cases unless otherwise noted.

74 75 76

78

Mr. Archer - Good evening, the Planning Commission will come to order. Good evening, folks. We'll begin the meeting by standing and pledging allegiance to the flag. I would like to ask everyone to please mute or turn off your cell phones, if you would. Thank you.

79 80 81

82

83

Thank you. I would like to acknowledge Mr. Frank Thornton, the Supervisor from the Fairfield District who is serving on the Planning Commission this year. Good evening, Mr. Thornton. And I believe Mr. Robinson is here from the *Times-Dispatch*. How are you, sir? Good to see you. All right.

84 85 86

Ms. Jones - I think they want you to speak up or-

87		
88	Mr. Archer -	Is this better? Okay, good.
89		
90		im tonight, and we've got a full agenda. So with that, I am
91 92	going to turn the meeting	g over to Mr. Joe Emerson, our secretary. Mr. Emerson.
93 94	Mr. Emerson - Commission did meet	Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will note that the Planning earlier this evening and had a work session on three
95 96	items—one regarding	signs, one regarding a potential change in the code on dwellings, and then another item regarding transfers
97 98	of approval in their rules	and regulation.
99	With that said, Mr. Ch	nairman, first on your agenda tonight are requests for
100 101		ls. Those will be presented by Mr. Jim Strauss.
102	Mr. Archer -	All right. Good evening, Mr. Strauss. How are you?
103		3,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
104	Mr. Strauss -	Good evening, sir, and members of the Commission.
105	We have two requests t	for deferral this evening. The first is in the Varina District.
106	It's on page 2 of your ac	genda, REZ2016-00026, David L. and Charlotte Y. Holley.
107		ing a deferral to the September 15, 2016 meeting.
108		
109	REZ2016-00026	David L. and Charlotte Y. Holley: Request to
110		ess District to B-2 Business District Parcel 826-716-2217
111	-	ocated at the southwest intersection of W. Williamsburg
112 113	sales. The uses will be	nd S. Confederate Avenue. The applicant proposes retail controlled by zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026
114		recommends Commercial Concentration. The site is
115	located in the Enterprise	e Zone and the Airport Safety Overlay District.
116	Ma Anahan	All sight to these parameters and in the in-
117 118	Mr. Archer -	All right. Is there anyone present who is opposed to 6-00026, David L. and Charlotte Y. Holley? I see no
119	opposition. Mr. Leaboug	
120	opposition: wir. Leaboug	in.
121	Mr. Leabough -	Mr. Chair, I move that REZ2016-00026, David L. and
122	•	deferred at the request of the applicant to the September
123	15, 2016 meeting.	deferred at the reducest of the applicant to the deptember
124	10, 20 to meeting.	
125	Ms. Jones -	Second.
126		
127	Mr. Archer -	Motion by Mr. Leabough and seconded by Ms. Jones.
128		opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.
129	in later out a joi. / in t	opposed say not the ayes have it, the motion passes.
130	Mr. Strauss -	The second request for deferral this evening is in the
131		s on page 2 of the agenda and is REZ2016-00019, CP

132	Other Realty, LLC. The ap	oplicant is requesting a deferral to the October 13, 2016
133	meeting.	
134		
135	REZ2016-00019	James W. Theobald for CP Other Realty, LLC:
136		ed conditions accepted with rezoning case C-8C-09 on
137		ated on the north line of W. Broad Street (U.S. Route
138		east of Towne Center West Boulevard. The applicant
139		er 13 related to signage and Proffer 21 related to wall
140	height The existing zoni	ng is B-3C Business District (Conditional). The 2026
141		emmends Commercial Arterial. The site is in the West
	Broad Street Overlay Distr	
142	Bload Street Overlay Distr	ICt.
143	Mr. Australia	All sight to those process are set who is seened to
144	Mr. Archer -	All right. Is there anyone present who is opposed to
145		0019, James W. Theobald for CP Other Realty, LLC in
146	the Three Chopt District?	see none. Mrs. Marshall.
147		
148	Mrs. Marshall -	Mr. Chairman, I move that James W. Theobald for CP
149		erred to the October 13, 2016 meeting at the request of
150	the applicant.	
151		
152	Mr. Witte -	Second.
153		
154	Mr. Archer -	Motion by Mrs. Marshall and seconded by Mr. Witte.
155	All in favor say aye. All op	posed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.
156		
157	Mr. Emerson -	Mr. Chairman, that completes the withdrawal and
158	deferral list this evening,	unless the Commission has any deferrals they'd like to
159	enter.	
160		
161	Mr. Archer -	Anybody on the Commission with a deferral? I don't
162	think so, Mr. Secretary.	
163		
164	Mr. Emerson -	Mr. Chairman, with that we'll move on the requests for
165		Il also be presented by Mr. Jim Strauss.
166		
167	Mr. Archer -	Good evening, again, Mr. Strauss.
168	Will, 7 il Giller	Joseph Marine Grand Control of the C
169	Mr. Strauss -	Good evening. Thank you, Mr. Secretary. We have
170		on the expedited agenda this evening. It's in the Three
171	Chant District It's on no	ge 3 of your agenda and is REZ2016-00027, Eagle
172	Construction of VALLC T	The applicant is requesting to rezone 7.4 acres to the R-
173	5AC District Staff is reco	ommending approval with the proffers dated June 16,
	2016. We are not aware of	
174	2010. We are not aware o	any opposition.
175	REZ2016-00027	Nathalie Croft for Eagle Construction of VA, LLC:
176		ezone from A-1 Agricultural District and R-5AC General
177	Reduest to conditionally to	EZUNE NUM A- I AGINCUITATA DISTRICT AND NEVAC GENERAL

Residence District (Conditional) to R-5AC General Residence District (Conditional) Parcels 743-755-6947, -7544, -7943, -7959, -8021, -8027, -8266, -8441, -8571, -8860, -8877, -8912, -9039, -9357, -9579, -9715, -9856, -9921, -9967, 744-755-0172, -0227, -0386 -0433, -0739, -1145, -1350, and -1654 containing 7.46 acres located on the east line of Crown Grant Road at its intersection with Cedar Hill Court. The applicant proposes single-family detached homes on zero lot lines. The R-5A District allows a maximum density of six (6) units per acre. The use will be controlled by proffered conditions and zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Suburban Residential 2, density should not exceed 3.4 units per acre.

Mr. Archer - All right. Is there a motion?

Mrs. Marshall - Mr. Chairman, I move that REZ2016-00027, Nathalie Croft for Eagle Construction of VA, LLC, be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation for approval subject to proffers dated June 16, 2016, as noted in the staff report.

Ms. Jones - Second.

Mr. Archer - Motion by Mrs. Marshall and seconded by Ms. Jones.
All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

REASON - Acting on a motion by Mrs. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Jones, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the Board of Supervisors **grant** the request because it would permit development of the land for residential use in an appropriate manner and the proffered conditions would provide appropriate quality assurances not otherwise available.

Mr. Thornton - Mr. Chairman, would you be so kind—there may be some people for their first time here—to have the secretary explain the expedited approach?

Mr. Archer - Oh, okay. Mr. Secretary, would you explain the expedited agenda, why we do it, and the reason for it?

 Mr. Emerson - Yes sir, Mr. Chairman. As you know, the Commission does have an expedited agenda. And what that is, as a case is reviewed, if it has a clean staff report, and there are no concerns raised in the community, and we receive no phone calls essentially, we place that on the expedited agenda if requested by the applicant for a quicker review and action by the Planning Commission. And of course when the case is called on the expedited agenda, the Chairman does ask if there's any opposition in the audience. If there is no opposition in the audience, then the Commission moves that forward so it makes more productive use of the public's time to hear the other cases of greater interest.

1	224		
	225	Mr. Archer -	All right, thank you, sir. All right, moving right along.
	226		
	227	Mr. Emerson -	Mr. Chairman, that does complete the expedited
	228	items for this evening. W	Ve now move into the regular agenda. The first item
	229	appears at the top of pag	je 2, and it's PUP2016-00001, Mr. Wayne Phaup. The
	230	staff report will be present	ed by Mr. William Moffett.
	231		***************************************
	232	(Deferred from the July	14, 2016 Meeting)
	233	PUP2016-00001	Wayne Phaup: Request for a Provisional Use Permit
	234	under Sections 24-62.2(i)), 24-120 and 24-122.1 of Chapter 24 of the County
	235		ur pool tables with extended hours of operation until 2
	236		rant on part of Parcel 824-716-7935 located along the
	237		ourg Road (U.S. Route 60) between Early and Jackson
	238		ning is B-3 Business District. The 2026 Comprehensive
	239		mercial Concentration. The site is located in the
	240		Airport Safety Overlay District.
	241	Enterprise Zerie and the r	import surety stories, broatist.
	242	Mr. Archer -	How are you, Mr. Moffett?
	243		, and jos, min mones.
	244	Mr. Moffett -	Doing well, sir. How are you?
	245		Doing Holl, oil Flori ale year
	246	Mr. Archer -	All right. Is there anyone present who is opposed to
,	247	PUP2016-00001, Wayne	
	248		
	249	Male -	[Off microphone.] Yes.
	250		
	251	Mr. Archer -	We do have opposition. We'll get to you. Thank you.
	252	Mr. Moffett?	
	253		
	254	Mr. Moffett -	Thank you.
	255		
	256	The Steelhouse Tavern	is an existing restaurant located a 400 West
	257	Williamsburg Road and o	consists of the two eastern-most tenant spaces of the
	258		ncludes Gorman and Sons Collision Center and Top-
	259	-	nter. These retail spaces were formerly occupied by
	260		and the Sandstonian restaurant
	261		
	262	The subject property is zo	oned unconditional B-3, Business District and the 2026
	263		mmends Commercial Concentration.
	264		
	265	The applicant currently ha	as two pool tables in the restaurant which are allowed
	266		owever, the Ordinance states that any business that
	267		close between 12 a.m. (midnight) and 6 a.m. With this
1	268		hes to have four pool tables and operate until 2 a.m. If
1	269		ousiness would need to close at midnight if any pool
		The second of th	

tables are provided. If pool tables are no longer provided, their hours of operation would not be restricted.

As you may recall, this case was deferred at the applicant's request at the January 14, 2016 Planning Commission meeting to establish a track record with the surrounding community. The case was deferred again at the July 14, 2016 meeting, at the Planning Commission's request, for the applicant to hold a community meeting. The community meeting was held last Wednesday (August 3rd) at the Steelhouse Tavern, and some residents from the Sandston neighborhood provided their concerns about security inside and outside the establishment and how the restaurant is impacting the surrounding neighborhood. Due to concerns raised by the surrounding community and County agencies, staff continues to recommend this case be denied.

This concludes my presentation. I will be happy to answer any questions you may have for me.

Mr. Archer - Thank you, sir. Are there questions for Mr. Moffett from the Commission? All right. Mr. Leabough, do you wish to hear from the applicant or the opposition?

291 Mr. Leabough - I wish to hear from the opposition first, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Archer - Okay. Will the opposition or a representative of the opposition please come forward?

Mr. Emerson - Mr. Chairman, I will take this opportunity to review the Commission's rules and regulations regarding public hearings.

299 Mr. Archer - All right. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Emerson - The Commission does have guidelines regarding public hearings that they will follow this evening. The applicant is allowed ten minutes to present the request, and time may be reserved for responses to testimony. Opposition is allowed a cumulative ten minutes to present its concerns. That means everyone that's speaking on a certain item, ten minutes in the entirety for that group to speak. Commission questions do not count into the time limits. The Commission may waive the time limits for either party at its discretion. Comments must be directly related to the case under consideration.

Mr. Archer - All right. Thank you, sir. Sir, if you would, state your name and address for the record please.

Mr. Creeden - Yes. My name is Paul Creeden. C-r-e-e-d-e-n. And I live at 7 Picket Avenue in Sandston. For the record, that's about 2-1/2 blocks from the Steelhouse Tavern in question here.

Mr. Archer -

All right. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Creeden - As Mr. Moffett stated, we were here about a month ago, and we deferred in order to have a community meeting, which we did hold last week. Again, I certainly won't repeat everything Mr. Moffett said. But we did raise two main areas of concern, and that is the security within and without the established and the effect of this establishment on the existing neighborhood. I will address those two points, trying to concentrate on events since we last spoke.

We met last week at the Steelhouse Tavern. Mr. Phaup was there. We talked for about an hour. One of the things to greatly concern me was that Mr. Phaup said in his petition he wanted, in fact he needed, these extra pool tables in order to hold tournaments and the like at his restaurant, which his business relied upon. However, at the meeting, he said he didn't care if he had pool tables, that he'd be just as happy with air hockey tables or anything else that would attract a crowd. So I think that's one basis on which we have a serious problem with what's going

Another thing we talked about was the security. We talked about a uniformed police officer, off duty, or a bonded security company outside to patrol the parking lot. A lot of the concern from the neighborhood is about what goes on in the parking lot, finding broken bottles and drunks and things like that at all hours of the night. Mr. Phaup's response was that he would rather not have anyone in uniform presenting a security presence because that would perhaps cause about 25 percent of his business to leave. That being the case, I would say on behalf of the neighborhood those are the types of customers we don't want in Sandston at 2:00 in the morning.

The other thing that Mr. Moffett said was that we were concerned about the effect on the neighborhood. One of the things last time I was I here I noted was that in the six months prior to the Steelhouse Tavern opening, there were zero calls to Henrico County for non-medical service. In the six months since that time, there have been 162 non-medical service calls. That includes drunk and disorderly, vandalism, petty theft, breaking and entering, and similar crimes. I would say of the 162, 9 of those service calls occurred since our last meeting a month ago.

What we have done—and I have it here. I don't have a copy, but I'll be happy to get a copy for you. We've taken a survey and a petition among the residents. There are approximately 80 houses in an eight-block area surrounded, in roughly, a half-circle the Steelhouse Tavern. In front of the Steelhouse Tavern is a parking lot and across is N & W Salvage and an empty field. So about the half-circle behind and around it. Of those 80 surveys, which we're still getting back, 60 people have opposed the applicant's request for extra pool tables and extra

time to be open. Like I said, some of those came in today. I'll have a better count perhaps another time.

The survey—and I have a copy of that as well—asked what types of crimes and things have you noticed increasing in the neighborhood. Just to generalize, 60 percent of those saw an increase in vandalism and trespassing, and 80 percent saw an increase in late-night erratic driving. Obviously, those people are not in a position to say the occupants of the vehicles were drunk or not drunk. But I think we can all agree that we recognize erratic driving when we see it, especially when we see at 1, 2, or 3:00 in the morning.

The surveys and the petitions that I have—like I said, I have the copies of those. I'm sorry that I only have the originals here. I can get copies. The crime data, the 162 calls, that comes from the Henrico County Police Department website. Those figures I believe are accurate as of today. But again, anybody can run those numbers. We can certainly take care of that.

The other issue is that at the meeting, Mr. Phaup said he was really only interested in being open Thursday, Friday, and Saturday night. Yet, his application is for every night of the week. We also talked about—and he agreed to look into—security in the parking lot.

So I would submit a couple of things. Number one, the burden of proof for this application rests entirely on Mr. Phaup. It is nobody else's burden to prove why he should not have his application granted. But, I think I have given plenty of statistics and numbers to prove that there is a lack of security and there is a terrible effect on the surrounding neighborhood. In addition, his own statements about Thursday, Friday, and Saturday and the fact that he would look into security I think is a valid reason for denying his existing application and perhaps if he wants to re-file or amend, that he should at least do that.

I'll be happy to answer any questions.

Mr. Archer - Thank you, Mr. Creeden. Are there questions from the Commission for Mr. Creeden?

397 Mr. Witte - I have one.

Mr. Archer - Go ahead, Mr. Witte.

Mr. Creeden, obviously you're concerned about erratic driving and the problems in the neighborhood. My feeling is you're relating it to the restaurant. If you have those concerns that's an issue, have you notified the ABC Board or the Henrico Police about the issues?

406 407		Yes. I have not notified the Police Department myself, ave in fact called the police when they see this.
408 409 410	Mr. Witte - investigator.	And the ABC Board? They'll send an undercover
411 412 413 414		I am not aware of whether that has been done BC has found violations there in the past. I can certainly
415 416 417 418	Mr. Witte - would suggest that would	If you're concerned about, as a citizen of Sandston, I be the next thing that I would have done.
419	Mr. Creeden -	Correct.
420 421 422	Mr. Witte -	After I got that police report. It's totally up to you.
423 424		I'll certainly look into that. It's one of the things we're g about the application tonight.
425 426 427	Mr. Archer -	All right. Anyone else with questions for Mr. Creeden?
428 429	Mr. Leabough - have been ABC violations	Let me make sure I understand you correctly. There since they've opened?
430 431 432 433		Correct. As I understood it, Mr. Phaup talked about ring beer. I don't know all the details, but he mentioned
434 435 436	Mr. Leabough - missed that at the meeting	Okay. That's the first I've heard of that. Okay. Maybe I g. Okay, thank you.
437 438	Mr. Archer -	Anything else for Mr. Creeden? Thank you, sir.
439 440 441	Mr. Creeden -	Thank you.
442 443 444 445	we've already heard, yo	There are five minutes left for the opposition. If there shes to speak that will not just cover the same topics bu're welcome to come up. No one else? All right, to hear from the applicant?
446 447	Mr. Leabough -	Sure.
448 449 450 451	Mr. Archer - evening, Mr. Phaup.	All right. Will the applicant come up, please? Good

452	Tavern. Can you hear me	??
454	Mr. Archer -	Yes.
455 456	MI. Alchei -	165.
456 457 458	Mr. Phaup -	Number one, I want to let you all know that we're mond for a restaurant. Number 2, we've never had an
459 460	ABC violation. They came	e in about three weeks ago, signed off on everything. No about 200-and-some houses in an eight-block radius.
461 462	else at that's complainin	here than three or four people? So where's everybody g? He's three blocks away. So he can't say all these
463 464		es coming from my restaurant to their neighborhood. It e. A hundred and some? I guess everybody's coming
465 466	from my place and going	
467 468	The state of the s	equire—we're only asking for two tables, stay open aturday night. That's all we're asking for. So I thank you
469 470		e any questions, I'll answer them for you.
471	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Mr. Phaup. Questions for Mr. Phaup?
472	Ma Lashavah	One was analyte the the analyte available that was
473 474 475	Mr. Leabough - raised as well as the—	Can you speak to the security question that was
476 477		They asked about—yes sir. I'm sorry. They asked m 12 to 2 on those three nights. I told them I don't have
478 479	any problem with doing ti	nat in the parking lot if they want that.
480 481	Mr. Leabough - real crime stats that they	What about the impact on the community? Those are shared.
482 483 484	Mr. Phaup - from my restaurant?	What I'm trying to say is are those crime stats coming
485	non my restaurant?	
486 487	Mr. Leabough -	I don't know; I'm asking you.
488	Mr. Phaup -	That's what I'm asking. I don't think so. So the whole
489 490	neighborhood is coming	from my restaurant of people breaking in and stuff. urant and breaking into all these neighborhoods. No sir,
491 492	I don't think so. Not hard	
493	Mrs. Marshall -	Have there been nine service calls to your
494 495	establishment since we la	
496 497	Mr. Phaup -	Nine?

498 499	Mrs. Marshall -	Nine.
500 501 502 503 504 505	calls to the neighborhood it I think is what he's talk	To my establishment? There haven't been any that I out the neighborhood, I think. He's talking about nine. Well, you know, the eight- or ten-block radius behind ing about. There have been none to mine. Lighting hit ire, if you want to call that one.
506 507 508	Mr. Leabough - to the concerns that they i	Okay. Anything else you'd like to speak to to respond raised?
509 510	Mr. Phaup -	No sir.
511 512	Mr. Archer -	Ms. Jones has a question.
513 514	Ms. Jones -	Can I ask a quick question?
515 516	Mr. Leabough -	Sure.
517 518	Mr. Phaup -	Yes ma'am.
519 520 521 522		Mr. Phaup, I just want to make sure I understood what re I heard you properly. Your application is for having only Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights until two?
523 524 525 526 527	way it was set up. But w	Yes ma'am. That was the original one. We don't need original one I turned in was four tables and that's the e only stay open Thursday, Friday, and Saturday. We on Thursday, Friday, and Saturday. That's it.
528 529 530	Ms. Jones - Wednesday?	What are your hours on Monday, Tuesday,
531 532 533 534	Mr. Phaup - we'll probably have to sw night do not go off until 11	It's usually 11:00. But when football season comes, vitch it to 12 since Monday night football and Thursday 1:30. But 11:00.
535 536 537	Ms. Jones - Wednesday?	Are the pool tables in use Monday, Tuesday,
538 539	Mr. Phaup -	Yes ma'am.
540 541	Ms. Jones - you're requesting—are th	Okay. When extra pool tables—two extra, which ere, will they be in use Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday?

543 544 545 546	Mr. Phaup - be two because we have tables.	I won't put two more tables in there, ma'am. It'll only cornhole and darts and other stuff. It'll be just two
547 548	Ms. Jones -	So it will be a total of two tables all—
549 550	Mr. Phaup -	That's it.
551 552	Ms. Jones -	—nights of the week. There won't be—
553 554	Mr. Phaup -	No ma'am.
555 556	Ms. Jones -	—an extra two tables.
557 558	Mr. Phaup -	There will be no other tables, just two.
559 560	Ms. Jones -	Okay. Just want to make sure.
561 562	Mr. Phaup -	Yes ma'am.
563 564	Ms. Jones -	And the request for 2 a.m.—
565 566	Mr. Phaup -	Yes ma'am.
567 568	Ms. Jones -	—is only for Thursday, Friday, Saturday night.
569 570 571	Mr. Phaup - and Saturday night until tv	That's what we stay open. It will be Thursday, Friday, vo. Yes ma'am.
572 573 574	Ms. Jones - wasn't sure I understood y	And did I hear you say—again, it's just because I you at the podium.
575 576	Mr. Phaup -	Yes ma'am. I'm sorry.
577 578 579 580 581		Did I hear you say that you are amenable to having rity guard or off-duty policeman or somebody in the on the nights that you're open—Thursday, Friday,
582 583 584	Mr. Phaup - the parking lot Thursday, I	Yes ma'am. I could have one person from 12 to 2 in Friday, and Saturday night. Yes ma'am.
585 586	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
587 588	Mr. Leabough -	Uniform, license.

)	589 590	Mr. Phaup - Henrico or not, but it'll be u	It'll be uniform and license. I don't know if it'll be iniform and license. Yes sir.
	591 592 593	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
	594 595	Mr. Leabough -	And none inside?
	596 597	Mr. Phaup -	No sir.
	598 599	Mr. Leabough -	Okay.
	600 601 602	Ms. Jones - you can	For instance, if there's an issue that comes up inside,
	603 604 605 606		We have somebody out—yes ma'am. We have ng IDs and stuff anyone and periodically looking to see e can approach those people. Yes ma'am.
	607 608	Ms. Jones -	Inside or out?
	609 610	Mr. Phaup -	Both.
)	611 612	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
	613 614	Mr. Witte -	Why wouldn't you have the security come inside?
	615 616	Mr. Leabough -	I don't understand that either.
	617 618	Mr. Phaup -	Like what, armed security?
	619 620	Mr. Leabough -	Uniformed licensed security.
	621 622	Mr. Witte -	Uniformed licensed.
	623 624 625 626 627 628	were a little too gung ho,	I had that one time before at my last place, and they didn't really know how to handle people. I guess they a little too arm strength. Do you know what I mean? ublic, you can talk to somebody besides being really
	629 630	Mr. Witte -	Well if you're hiring them
	631 632	Mr. Leabough -	That's exactly what I said at the community meeting.

I did that a couple of times. And I got rid of them Mr. Phaup -633 because they were military type, real forceful people. Most of those high-priced 634 security companies are like that that you hire. Some of them are not. 635 636 Mr. Leabough -But you have the option to get rid of them if they're 637 not performing up to your expectations. 638 639 Mr. Phaup -You do. 640 641 Your staff, they're interacting with the customers in 642 Mr. Leabough the restaurant as well. 643 644 Mr. Phaup -Correct. 645 646 So what makes your staff any more qualified than a Mr. Leabough -647 firm that's licensed and qualified to do that? 648 649 It doesn't make anyone more qualified. We just know Mr. Phaup -650 how to talk to people, that's all. Most of the time you can talk to people. You 651 know what I'm saying? 652 653 Can you speak to your operations and how your Mr. Leabough -654 operations can mitigate some of the concerns that the neighborhood has 655 expressed? 656 657 Mr. Phaup -I have no idea what they're saying about people 658 breaking in and people doing blah, blah, blah. That road beside us is used 659 religiously. One percent of the people coming out of our parking lot go down that 660 road. That's a cut-through road to get over and get to 64. So I mean it's always 661 used whether I was there or not. 662 663 664 Mr. Leabough -They've complained about beer bottles and other things in the parking lot. So can you speak to that? 665 666 Mr. Phaup -667 We police the parking lot every night and every morning when we get there. That's all I can do. When I'm not there, I can't speak 668 for it. If we're closed, I don't know. Like I say, we're pretty much on top of all that 669 stuff, you know, picking up cigarette butts, picking up beer bottles, picking up 670 cans—whatever. But when somebody leaves at night sometimes, they might— 671 out of their truck or out of their car, when they get in or out of their vehicle, not 672 from being at our place, they might knock one out. We police it the best way we 673 can. It's all I can do. 674 675 676 Mr. Leabough -So I'm going to help you. While you're in operation, so you're there, what's your staff doing to make sure that people aren't drinking in 677

678

the parking lot, doing things that they shouldn't be doing? Can you speak to that?

679	Ma Dhaus	V W
680	Mr. Phaup -	Yes. We make sure—I roam the parking lot some and
681		some, up and down, to make sure nothing is really
682		people see you walk by, they'll clam up. Most of the
683		parking lot, though. Either they're coming or going. We
684		ut of our restaurant. That's it. If you forget something in
685		rettes or your pocketbook or your coat, one time. After
686		in. That's it. You have to go. We put a stop to that a
687	while back.	
688	Mr. Lashaugh	Co you go in the parking let
689	Mr. Leabough -	So you go in the parking lot.
690	Mr. Phaup -	I have.
691 692	Wil. Pliaup -	Tilave.
693	Mr. Leabough -	Can you speak to its frequency?
694	Wir. Leabougii -	can you speak to its frequency?
695	Mr. Phaup -	Yes. We roam it all the time.
696	Wil. I Haup	res. We reall it all the time.
697	Mr. Leabough -	Who's doing it other than you?
698	Wil Edabougi	Title 6 doing it other than you:
699	Mr. Phaup -	Yes sir, we roam it all the time. We check. Cars out
700		forth. Willy will walk back and forth. Christopher will
701	walk back and forth. We all	
702		
703	Mr. Leabough -	is that every hour, every couple of hours?
704	-	
705	Mr. Phaup -	Probably sooner than that, sir. Sometimes every 30
706	minutes, every 20 minutes	es we'll walk around. It all depends on how many
707		ne of them, if there are not that many vehicles, you can
708		what's going on. If there are vehicles, then you go out
709		and come back. But we try to get up the best we can so
710	nobody gets in trouble.	
711		
712	Mr. Leabough -	All right.
713		
714	Mr. Phaup -	You know, for the community. Like he said, he's
715	2-1/2, 3 blocks away.	
716		taken and the second se
717	Mr. Leabough -	Which his concerns are just as legitimate as if he
718	were right behind you, sir.	
719	M. Dhave	Lanca with your Dut what Parks in the account of the
720	Mr. Phaup -	I agree with you. But what I'm trying to say, you've got
721	two or three numbered peop	le living in an eight-city block there.
722	Mr. Loobough	Which makes his concerns no less important
723	Mr. Leabough -	Which makes his concerns no less important.
724		

725	Mr. Phaup -	That's correct.
726 727	Mr. Leabough -	Thank you.
728		
729	Mr. Phaup -	You're welcome. You all have a good day.
730 731	Mr. Archer -	Any other questions for Mr. Phaup before he takes a
732	seat?	Any other questions for this I made before he takes a
733		
734	Mr. Leabough -	I have no further questions.
735	Mr. Arabar	All sight
736 737	Mr. Archer -	All right.
738	Mr. Leabough -	Is there anyone from police here to speak?
739		
740	Mr. Emerson -	I believe the community officer is here.
741	Mr. Arabas	Okay Mauld the community officer slaves come up?
742 743	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Would the community officer please come up?
744	Mr. Leabough -	I didn't want to assume that's why you were here,
745	0	figured you were here for this case. Officer LaPrade, there
746	were some crime stats	s that were shared by the community. Could you speak to
747	crime stats kind of pre	and post this business locating in the community?
748	Officer LaDrade	Me reportment at the from March 1, 2015, last year to
749 750		We ran crime stats from March 1, 2015, last year, to ear. In that general area, there were 867 calls for service,
751		ar, March 1, 2016, to August 9, 2016, we have 1,170 calls.
752		of a little over 300 calls in that general area. We do have 15
753		at amount of time that are either directly at Steelhouse
754	Tavern or something the	nat occurred that was related to Steelhouse Tavern.
755 756	Of note on March 12	2016, we had a DUI from that location. On May 7, 2016,
757		location. On May 1st, we had an assault call there. And
758		e had an assault call at that location. When a brother
759		ther we got there. We made an arrest. We found drugs on
760		ed that he had purchased heroin and marijuana out in front
761	of Steelhouse Tavern.	
762 763	That's all I have for you	u. We have 15 calls from that particular location.
764	That's all Thave for you	a. We have 15 cans north that particular location.
765	Mr. Leabough -	Thank you, sir.
766		
767	Mr. Archer -	Any questions for the officer before he takes a seat?
768	Thank you, sir, we app	reciate it.
769 770	Office LaPrade -	Thank you.
110	Office Larrage -	mank you.

Mr. Archer -

Okay, Mr. Leabough.

Mr. Leabough - I'd like to ask Mr. Moffett to please come forward again. This is a tough case. My real concern is that the use is allowed. And with or without pool tables, they're going to operate. And the concerns that the community has won't go away. So I asked Mr. Moffett to draft some conditions that could possibly mitigate or address some of the concerns that the community has raised. Mr. Moffett, do you happen to have some conditions that could hopefully mitigate some of these issues? Do you have a copy to read the highlights for us, Mr. Moffett?

Mr. Moffett -

I do. Would you like me to go through them?

Mr. Leabough -

Yes sir, please.

Mr. Moffett - Okay. These conditions were a draft to sort of correct some of the things with the restaurant that the community had shared with us and some concerns that staff had as well. Would you like me to read it or just—

Mr. Leabough -

Just hit the highlights.

Mr. Moffett - Okay, okay. Number 1 would make the provisional use permit revocable by the Board of Supervisors. It does limit the number of pool tables to four. We can always change that the two. To solve an issue that staff had with the door leading into that room being closed, staff would like them to install an approved hold-open device in conjunction with the 2012 Virginia Construction Code so that this door would remain open and only close in case of a fire.

Mr. Leabough -

The hours of operation?

Mr. Moffett - Right. The house of operation would be limited to 6 a.m. to 12 a.m. Sunday night through Wednesday night and between 6 a.m. and 2 a.m. Thursday night through Saturday night. So that would resolve the hours of operation concern as well.

There was a neighborhood concern about the use of an exterior door from the game room that allowed patrons to exit to the rear of the building. Number 5 would be to not allow patrons to use that and make it an alarmed emergency exit only.

Some of these would be sort of things you would expect such as leaving the premises and parking areas immediately after the close of business. No loitering. No outside speakers or sound system.

And then the Division of Police have a series of comments in the staff report. 817 Typically, we request that the applicant with the special services unit to go over 818 things such as lighting and security cameras and come to some kind of amicable 819 agreement on those items. Another thing included in that would be the facility's 820 windows not be tinted or obscured for surveillance purposes. 821 822 Number 12 is the last one, and that would be at least two uniform security 823 officers shall be on duty during the extended hours of operation. The security 824 officers shall periodically monitor the exterior of the premises as well as the 825

interior for possible criminal activity. And security officers shall either be off-duty police officers or licensed security guards employed by a licensed security service company.

828 829 830

831

832

833

834

835

826

827

Mr. Secretary, as far as that condition 12 is Mr. Leabough concerned, I would suggest that it be one uniformed Henrico police officer on the exterior and one uniformed licensed security officer on the interior of that property. And also, not just for the extended hours of operation, but from 10 till 2 a.m. when that business is open on Thursday, Friday, and Saturday. So possible amendments to the conditions shared tonight.

836

Mr. Witte -If I can add something.

837 838

839 Mr. Leabough -Yes sir.

840

841 Mr. Witte -If you stated it that way, you're basically eliminating the possibility that Henrico police officer go inside the building at all, even for the 842 restroom. So if you just put that they have to have one of each. 843

844

Mr. Leabough -That's what I'm suggesting. 845

846

Mr. Witte -Okay. I thought you said-847

848

849 Mr. Leabough -I think they have a policy where they have to be outside. They don't go inside of the premises. Maybe Officer LaPrade can speak 850 to that. Mr. Emerson, that doesn't limit that officer from going inside if need be to 851 respond to some issue. 852

853

854 Mr. Emerson -No, I don't think it would. But I don't if the officer would like to respond to it or not. Is there a policy that prohibits off-duty Henrico 855 police officers from working in these types of situations? We had some 856 information regarding that, and we weren't clear on that. 857

858

859 Mr. Leabough -Yes. Would they be restricted from being inside of the business? 860

861

862 Officer LaPrade -We're restricted from working inside the premises.

40.75		
863	Mr. Leabough -	But they can recovered if need be
864 865	Mi. Leabough -	But they can respond if need be.
866	Officer LaPrade -	But we certainly can respond inside.
867		
868	Mr. Leabough -	If there's a need.
869	Officer LaPrade -	If there's a pood to Timically we want autilia in the
870 871	parking lots.	If there's a need to. Typically, we work outside in the
872	M. C.	Value and the control of the control
873	Mr. Emerson -	You can work outside but not inside off duty.
874 875	Officer LaPrade -	Yes sir.
876	Officer Lar rade -	165 511.
877	Mr. Emerson -	Okay.
878		
879	Mr. Leabough -	But it wouldn't restrict you from responding to an
880	issue that arose.	
881		
882	Officer LaPrade -	Exactly. Nothing would restrict us from that.
883 884	Mr. Leabough -	But you couldn't staff interior.
885	Wil. Leabough -	But you couldn't stall interior.
886	Officer LaPrade -	Exactly.
887		
888	Mr. Leabough -	All right. Thank you, sir.
889		
890	Mr. Archer -	All right. Anybody else you'd like to hear from,
891	Mr. Leabough?	
892		
893	Mr. Leabough -	I don't think so.
894		
895	Ms. Jones -	Mr. Leabough, has Mr. Phaup been advised of all of
896	these?	
897		Market State Committee Com
898	Mr. Emerson -	Ms. Jones, he left the premises. And no ma'am, he
899		any of these conditions because we weren't sure exactly
900		ission may want to take. We didn't have an opportunity
901	to talk to him, and he did	leave.
902 903	Mr. Leabough -	He is generally aware that the community wanted
903	-	e officers to be at least on the exterior of the property.
904		officers would be there, I did modify that from what we
906		ring the community meeting because of the comment
907		er shared with us tonight. There seems to be something
701	and the committee of the	and the same of th

908 909	going on there that we need and 2.	ed really our officers there more than just between 12	
910 911 912		Ir. Secretary, to move forward with a vote on this case appropriate to defer since Mr. Phaup left the building?	
913			
914	Mr. Archer -	He would have to agree to these conditions, would he	
915	not?		
916		the state of the s	
917	Mr. Emerson -	It would be helpful if he agrees. He doesn't	
918		se it is a provisional use permit. The Commission has	
919		conditions. I think, Mr. Leabough and members of the	
920		t's your call whether you want to take action after the	
921	applicant has left or if you would choose to defer it and ask that he come back to		
922	your next meeting to discu	ss this opportunity.	
923		was a second and a	
924		If he wants—yes, I think we should vote on them as	
925		ould be making a recommendation for you all to move	
926	for denial.		
927			
928	Mr. Emerson -		
929	number 2 or did you mention that I missed it? It says there shall be no more than		
930	four billiard or bagatelle tal	bles—	
931		V- 1011 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
932	Mr. Leabough -	Yes. I think Mr. Moffett mentioned it, yes, changing	
933	that to two as well.		
934	Ma Carrage	To the one The applicant and sink does not have to	
935	Mr. Emerson -	To two, yes. The applicant certainly does not have to	
936	be present for you to take	action on his application.	
937	Mr. Leabough -	Those are conditions that he can appear as related to	
938	0	These are conditions that he can oppose as related to	
939	the recommendation for ap	opioval of the POP.	
940 941	Mr. Emerson -	Correct. It's always nice to have the applicant agree	
941	to the conditions, but they		
943	to the conditions, but they	don't necessarily have to.	
944	Mr. Archer -	Now so that I understand, if he does not agree to the	
945	conditions, then that negat		
946	conditions, their that negati	ico trio caso, association	
947	Mr. Emerson -	Well-	
948			
949	Mr. Archer -	Or he can't operate unless he does agree.	
950			
951	Mr. Emerson -	Correct. He has to operate by the conditions that are	
952		mmission. Now one thing to keep in mind is this is a	
953	recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The Board will take final action on		

	954 955		will have an opportunity to come back for the second action on his application based upon whatever
	956		mission chooses to make to the Board this evening.
	957		
	958	Mr. Archer -	
	959	shall be guided by the dire	ction you want to go.
	960	AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE	
	961 962	•	Does the community have any questions? I know this ute. Do you have something you want to ask, sir?
	963		
	964	Mr. Archer -	Mr. Creeden, state your name again for the record,
	965	please.	
	966		
	967	Mr. Creeden -	Sure. Paul Creeden. I wanted to say that we talked
	968 969	about a lot of these things last week. Mr. Phaup at the time said he was amenable to a lot of them. He had some cost concerns, certainly, which I	
	970		why he left. But if some of the concern here is that he
			ty to respond, none of this is a surprise.
	971	doesn't have an opportuni	ty to respond, none of this is a surprise.
	972	Mr. Loobough	Voc. we talked about them at the community meeting
	973 974	Mr. Leabough -	Yes, we talked about them at the community meeting.
	975	Mr. Creeden -	We did talk about it.
-	976	Wil. Creedell -	We did talk about it.
	977	Mr. Leabough -	The only thing that's different is the extended hours
	978	for having the uniform office	
	979		
	980	Mr. Creeden -	Correct. And I think at the time we talked about four
	981	pool tables. And he himse	If said two tonight, so.
	982		3 ,
	983	Ms. Jones -	I will say that after last month's meeting, I was hoping
	984	the community and Mr. Ph	naup would talk. I was hoping that there was some way
	985	that a compromise could b	be reached between them because sometimes we're all
	986	about giving a little and ge	etting a little and making sure that we try to present the
	987		the security levels and the conditions are things that
	988	have been discussed, this	may be the compromise.
	989		
	990	Mr. Leabough -	Otherwise, denial would be the only other alternative.
	991		
	992	Mr. Archer -	And bearing in mind what Mr. Secretary said. This is
	993	only a recommendation. T	he Board will have the final discretion on this.
	994	33.	
	995	Mr. Leabough -	Thank you, sir.
	996		
	997	Mr. Leabough -	I will say that I am concerned about this business and
	998		at go on here and hope these conditions bring some
	999		mfort to the community. I am shocked by what the

community officer, Officer LaPrade, shared with us tonight. I know I wouldn't want to live next to it. But I don't think the issue before us is pool tables; it's much bigger than that. And I'm hoping these conditions will help bring some resolve to that.

There was something mentioned and I have to go on record mentioning this. I hope Mr. Phaup is aware that anything that happens on his property as a result of serving alcohol to someone in his business it is his responsibility what they do after they leave there. He made a comment to the community and I that he was not responsible for what people do after they leave. If you serve someone alcohol in your home or if you serve someone alcohol in a business, you're responsible for what they do if they're intoxicated and they go out and do something that impacts someone's life in a very negative way.

With that, I would move that PUP2016-00001, Wayne Phaup, be moved on to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation for approval only with the conditions that were presented tonight with the change of no more than two billiard tables, the changes to the hours of operation, as well as the changes as noted to the number of uniformed Henrico and uniformed licensed security officers be on premises from the hours of 10 p.m. to 2 a.m. I recommend that that be moved on to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation for approval.

1022 Mr. Witte - Second.

1024 Mr. Leabough - And conditions 1 through 12 dated August 11, 2016.
1025 Sorry.

1027 Mr. Archer - That's okay. Motion by Mr. Leabough and seconded by Mr. Witte. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

REASON - Acting on a motion by Mr. Leabough, seconded by Mr. Witte, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the Board of Supervisors **grant** the requested Provisional Use Permit with a maximum of two pool tables because the proposed conditions could reduce the impact of the restaurant on the surrounding community.

Mr. Emerson - Mr. Chairman, we now move on to REZ2016-00024. It also appears on page 2 of your agenda. Henry Wilton for Wilton Acquisition LLC.
The staff report will be presented by Mr. Ben Sehl.

- (Deferred from the July 14, 2016 Meeting)
- REZ2016-00024 Henry Wilton for Wilton Acquisition, LLC: Request to conditionally rezone from R-3 One-Family Residence District, A-1 Agricultural District, and B-2 Business District to RTHC Residential Townhouse District (Conditional) Parcels 785-757-8737, 9998, 5477, 5749, and 6118 containing

16.412 acres located at the northwest corner of E. Parham Road (State Route 73) and Interstate 95. The RTH District allows a maximum gross density of nine (9) units per acre. The use will be controlled by proffered conditions and zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Urban Residential, density should range between 3.4 and 6.8 units per acre.

Mr. Archer - Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Is there anyone present who is opposed to REZ2016-00024, Henry Wilton for Wilton Acquisition, LLC? We'll get to you. Good evening, Mr. Sehl. How are you, sir?

 Mr. Sehl - Good evening, Mr. Chairman. I'm doing well, thank you.

This rezoning request would allow a townhome development of no more than 115 units. The site is located on the south line of Scott Road immediately west of Interstate 95. The Parham Road interchange is located just to the southeast. The site is primarily wooded and contains one dwelling on the northeast portion of the site, on the portion of property zoned A-1.

The applicant has held two community meetings with residents from the subdivision to the west—Garden City is the subdivision here—as well as residents of Scott Road. At these meetings, adjacent residents noted concerns regarding traffic on Scott Road and compatibility with existing single-family uses. As you'll note here, several paper streets, as well as Concord Avenue, which is developed, do terminate at the subject site.

However, as shown on this conceptual plan, access to the proposed development would be limited to Scott Road with a large buffer area separating the development from Garden City. This concept plan has been revised since the issuance of the staff report and has been handed out to you this evening along with revised proffers that address the recommended removal of three items noted by staff. The applicant has proffered this concept plan and has also provided a number of other proffers consistent with developments of this type elsewhere in the county.

The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Urban Residential for the subject site and properties to the west. The proposed townhouse development is consistent with this recommendation, and the submitted proffers are in keeping with other recent developments of this type. If developed as proposed, this request should not negatively impact adjacent uses and would remove unproffered business zoning that is in close proximity to existing residences. For these reasons, staff supports this request.

This concludes my presentation. I will be happy to answer any questions. Time limits would need to be waived in order to accept the proffers this evening.

1092 1093	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Mr. Sehl. Mr. Sehl, since people in the	
1093 1094 1095	audience probably will not have a copy of the staff report, can you indicate for us please the three items that you said had been addressed by these new proffers?		
1096 1097 1098 1099 1100	would be marketed; 16 re	Yes sir. Mr. Archer, as you'll note, in the staff report fers 13, which was regarding ownership and how they garding mailboxes; and 17 regarding model homes that propriate for the proffer statement and recommended plicant has done so.	
1101 1102	Mr. Archer -	Has done so. Thank you so much.	
1103 1104 1105 1106 1107	It was really more of a p	And he also amended the concept plan to address a ng the location of parking areas that staff had identified. lan of development issue, but we recommended they they have addressed those issues.	
1108 1109 1110	Mr. Archer - Commission for Mr. Sehl?	All right, thank you, sir. Are there questions from the	
1111 1112 1113	Ms. Jones -	Can I just ask—	
1114 1115	Mr. Archer -	You may ask anything, Ms. Jones.	
1116 1117	Ms. Jones - as owner occupied. Can y	And I usually do. The townhouses shall be marketed ou touch again on what that was inappropriate?	
1118 1119 1120 1121 1122 1123 1124	that, we just didn't feel-	It's a difficult proffer for staff to enforce in any manner. iation in the future wishes to adopt covenants regarding—it's something that we've seen in some townhouse ave generally been shying away from accepting those	
1125 1126	Ms. Jones -	Okay.	
1127 1128 1129	Mr. Thornton - What does that involve?	Mr. Sehl, I see this property is presently zoned B-2.	
1130 1131 1132 1133 1134 1135 1136	district, kind of our med uses, restaurants, shopp aren't any conditions, any for the B-2 district would be	You're correct, Mr. Thornton. The large majority of the s shown on the zoning map here. B-2 is a business ium-intensity business district. It allows various retailing centers, things of that type. Hotels. Since there of the uses that are identified in the Zoning Ordinance be permitted on the property. There have been no plans there have conversations with the current owner of the	

property and traffic impact analyses submitted contemplating that type of 1137 development in the past, but it's never moved forward. 1138 1139 1140 Mr. Archer -Thank you. Anyone else? 1141 Mr. Sehl -Thank you. 1142 1143 Mr. Archer -Thank you, Mr. Sehl. I think in this instance I would 1144 like to hear from the opposition first. So if there's someone who has been 1145 designated to speak for the opposition, would you come forward? I think you all 1146 were present with the secretary read the 10-minute rule for the other case? If so, 1147 we won't go through it again. Come on up, sir. While he's coming forward, bear in 1148 mind the 10-minute rule does not apply to any one person. The totality of 1149 everybody is included in the ten minutes. If there are others who wish to speak, 1150 you'll have to reserve some time for them. Thank you. 1151 1152 My name is Dennis Deering. I stay at 1000 Scott Mr. Deering -1153 Road, which is almost directly across from where they're trying to build. The 1154 concern I have is the road where they plan on widening right there where their 1155 property is. From there up to Athens, you have a little narrow road. You can 1156 barely get two bicycles in there. If two cars come in there, both of them almost 1157 have to slow up let the other one pass. So you have all of these units coming in, 1158 roughly another what, 200, 300 cars a day coming through there. And not only 1159 that, when they go out, they go across the bridge, it's even smaller. My concern 1160 is what are they going to do about that road in that area. And they have a school 1161 bus that's going to come in there. How are they going to stop when you have a 1162 bunch of kids out there? It's kind of hard to pass. They've torn my mailbox up a 1163 couple of times. That's how small the road is. 1164 1165 That's my main concern with this project that they're putting up. 1166 1167 Okay. All right. Thank you, sir. Any questions before Mr. Archer -1168 he sits down? Was your last name Warren, sir? 1169 1170 Mr. Deering -Deering. 1171 1172 Deering, I'm sorry. Mr. Archer -1173 1174 Yes. Mr. Deering -1175 1176 Thank you, Mr. Deering. Mr. Archer -1177 1178 Mr. Deering -Thank you. 1179 1180

Mr. Archer -

1181 1182 Would anyone else like to speak?

1183 Mr. Lipscomb - Good evening.

1185 Mr. Archer - Good evening, sir.

1187 Mr. Lipscomb - Lipscomb, Raymond Junior is my name.

1189 Mr. Archer - Okay, Mr. Lipscomb.

Mr. Lipscomb - I'm Mr. Deering's neighbor, but I'm on the east side of 95 and he's on the west side of 95. The conditions of the proposed dwellings on that property will affect the entire neighborhood as related to traffic. He mentioned something a moment ago about school buses. Well, school buses barely get through there now with only maybe several neighbors needing assistance from a school bus on the east side, which is where I am. Imagine that bus stopping momentarily, or however long it takes to get the residents' children at that point if the road isn't wide complete from curb to curb and not from center to curb on his property side.

So the biggest concern is basically congestion and traffic of a road that technically is a wagon path. People have a tenancy to kiss mirrors occasionally when they go through as they do now.

On the side where Dominion is developing, they have fixed that road so it is a four-lane road now. But when they stopped, Scott Road narrowed again. So this is basically going to be the same thing on the opposite side of where Deering lives when they do that. He's only responsible for that one area in front of his property line. So are we going to go from curb and gutters on his side to the ditch on the opposite side if they're only going to widen from the center line? Right now, the crown of the road is the center line because there hardly is a road. So we all are just concerned about that.

And the other thing is at some point Scott Road's bridge will be removed and demolished. That will isolate everyone on the east side if they don't get the road taken in, which I know they won't move the bridge until they do that. But is that possible that at some point the County would consider the property that they own now, which is in my backyard, to allow traffic to come through—well actually it's Best Plaza—to get to Parham Road from Scott Road if necessary for some type of a traffic diversion in an emergency in the future if that bridge is demolished, which is probably ten years down the road. I understand there's no money available now.

 But the big concern is the traffic and the intent of what will be done to alleviate the congestion that's already there with hardly any traffic whatsoever. And people, when they take traffic tolls and look at numbers, they don't think about the individuals in human nature terms. People are like electricity and water; they take a path of least resistance. So if they're coming from Verizon, which is in

1229	The state of the s	nt to do their lunch break, believe me, they're not going
1230	to go out to Parham Road,	run down across 95 on Parham Road, and come back
1231	up. They're coming around	d Scott Road. So now you have traffic coming out of
1232	the complex that they're g	joing to build and traffic. And it's going to happen at
1233	certain hours of the day ju	st like clockwork. It's going to be from 7 until 8:30. It's
1234	going to be from 11 until	1:30. And it's going to be 3:30 to 5:30. It's just like
1235	clockwork, and it's a racet	track. It's going to happen, there's no question about
1236	that. You can probably have	ve an officer observe the traffic going on. But we tried
1237	that. It didn't seem to elimin	nate anything.
1238		
1239	The overall big picture is	safety, traffic congestion, and the ability to move the
1240	public back and forth without	out a hindrance to the community that they're living in.
1241	And I thank you.	
1242		
1243	Mr. Archer -	Thank you.
1244		
1245	Ms. Jones -	Sir, can you tell me where your home is on this map?
1246		
1247	Mr. Lipscomb -	My home is 805 Scott Road. It's on the east side.
1248		
1249	Ms. Jones -	Can you put the cursor on it for me or maybe one of
1250	the staff members can?	Just so I know where you are in relation to this
1251	development.	
1252		
1253	Mr. Lipscomb -	Okay. I'll find it here in just a moment.
1254		
1255	Mr. Archer -	Take your time sir.
1256		140 D (D)
1257	Mr. Lipscomb -	Where's the Best Plaza on this?
1258	NAC VACUE	Local de diese stated
1259	Mr. Witte -	Just to the right.
1260	14- 12	Oh was welles up have Okay Voy and right thorough
1261	Mr. Lipscomb -	Oh yes, we're up here. Okay. You see right there at
1262	the Best Plaza where it say	/S R-2 /
1263	Ma Janea	Cataba yas
1264	Ms. Jones -	Gotcha, yes.
1265	Mr. Linecomb	Okay. My wife and I own that property there and the
1266	Mr. Lipscomb - two adjacent properties rig	
1267	two adjacent properties ng	nt here.
1268 1269	Ms. Jones -	Mr. Deering, I believe?
1270	W3. 0011C3 -	Will Booting, 1 Bolloto
1270	Mr. Lipscomb -	Mr. Deering, he is-let me get my bearings straight
1272		ere at Scott road. He's going to be basically directly
1273	across from it.	
1274		

1275	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
1276 1277	Mr. Lipscomb -	Yes. Pretty much right across. Right in that general
1278	area right there.	res. Fretty mach right across. right in that general
1279	area right there.	
1280	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
1281	100	,
1282	Mr. Lipscomb -	That little cut-in right in there, that's would be where
1283	his situation would be righ	
1284		
1285	Ms. Jones -	Just wanted to make sure I understood. Thank you.
1286		
1287	Mr. Lipscomb -	It's technically about safety and availability of
1288	sufficient roadway to handle the traffic that's going to be proposed for the over	
1289	big picture there.	
1290		
1291	Ms. Jones -	Thanks.
1292		
1293	Mr. Lipscomb -	Okay.
1294		
1295	Mr. Archer -	All right. Thank you, Mr. Lipscomb. Any other
1296		one else with to speak? We have about 2-1/2 minutes
1297	left, I believe.	
1298	Ma Casas	Cdi
1299	Ms. Green	Good evening.
1300	Mr. Archer -	Good evening me'em
1301 1302	Wir. Archer -	Good evening, ma'am.
1302	Ms. Greene	My name is Camille Greene, and I'm on Concord. The
1304	, .	ent is going to encounter or whatever, we are going to
1305		now, when we want to go out to Parham Road, we have
1306		ks, go up Athens to the light, then go up Brook Road to
1307		rham, and then come back down Parham Road just to
1308	get to Walmart.	100.10
1309	9	
1310	Now we have asked for a	light to be put there at Aberdeen and Parham because
1311		not get out. The traffic is backed up completely. In the
1312		ing. And when they put this development in, the people
1313		95, cut through Aberdeen, come through there to get to
1314		get a light there, then that would control some of the
1315	traffic coming in and out of	
1316		
1317	That's what I have. That's	s it.
1318		
1319	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Ms. Greene. Any questions for
1320	Ms. Greene? Thank you,	ma'am. We have a few seconds if there's somebody

else who wants to speak. Almost a minute. All right, thank you. Mr. Wilton, would you come forward, sir, and see if you can address some of these concerns.

Mr. Wilton - Can I switch it back to the colored example? Exhibit A. Okay. All right. For the record, my name is Henry Wilton. I represent Wilton Acquisitions LLC. I will tell you one thing, I will stay around for your decision. I won't be walking out. I'm going to be here however long it takes. That's one thing you can count on.

We are here to request rezoning for 16.4 acres. Part of it's R-3, A-1 and the majority it is B-2 (unconditional), obviously no conditions. So a number of things can be put there that would generate a lot of traffic. We do have a traffic study that was done in May that will show you exactly that. I have my traffic expert, when we get to that, if you want to ask him some questions. But basically, what we're planning with residential townhouses for sale, we're looking at a 93 percent reduction in the amount of traffic we generate versus the amount of traffic that would have generated if it had gone to zoning.

We had two meetings. Traffic was certainly the prime concern, people coming through the neighborhood, and Mr. Deering about the pavement width. We explained that on our side of the road—and I have plans here, Greg Koontz—that from the midpoint of the road, we go over 18 feet. So we're putting in 18 feet of new pavement and curb and gutter before we get to our entrance. Both of our entrances are on Scott Road. So we are taking care of the part that we control. We don't control the other part. When those lots are developed, somebody will have to do the other side. We are bringing sewer up that way, so I would think that somebody will have the sense to go ahead and develop that at a later date.

 We're following the Urban Residential overlay plan per the Comprehensive Plan. The buffers are the same as you see in many of these townhouse cases. Again, these are townhouses for sale. It's not a proffer, but that's certainly the intent. I'm not working with anybody that would go in and rent the units. They have to sell them to make their money.

In looking at the actual layout that you see up here, you've Scott Road. Again, we made sure our two points of access were up there. Scott Road. You can go directly down Scott Road to Route 1 and get to a light. We think that's the easiest way to get out from most of the people. And Carl will speak to that as far as his chart. Basically, his chart concerns the May report that they ran on the property. What you have before you in your handout is a condensed version of Carl's analysis with the chart behind it, and then an overlay showing how to get in and out if you took the back road out. Again, he'll be up here in a minute, if you'd like him to explain that.

Just going over the proffers, they are pretty much standard proffers. We did remove those three that they will go in the restrictive covenants. We have 115

units of which now we have about 113 units. And if you're looking at that, 113 units is about 6.9 units to the acre. Density allowed in here up to 6.8. We have a minimum average or 1500 square feet. Conceptual plan is proffered. The exterior elevations are, again going towards the cottage look that seems popular today.

The buffers, as you can see against the interstate on the layout we have up here, we have a 25-foot heavily wooded buffer. Where the sewer comes across the interstate, that's where that small pond would be located. We don't know how large that would be that would be a BMP of some size. We would probably use nutrient credits on this job also, so that would make it as small as possible. We have a similar one that we did on Wistar that we put in the middle. And again, we had features like that—a gazebo and so on—and we'll fix it up that way so people can sit around it and enjoy it.

We have a fence. The buffer coming up from Brockton Street is 75 feet going in. That's the R-3 across there, the R-3 zoning. We don't intend to go into that at all. We're going to leave all that, and then we're going to vacate the two access roads and return them to the association so that they'll never have to worry about those roads being opened. That will increase our buffer all the way across, except where we get to Concord. For Concord, we have a 25-foot buffer, which we'll have to go ahead and plant. That's the only area that basically is clear in the entire project. We have a six-foot white fence that goes along the interior of that 75-foot buffer and 25-foot buffer at the back of the units.

We're following the Comprehensive Plan. We feel like this is a good transition from single-family to residential multi-family. Again, townhouses for sale.

As far as traffic, if you have some questions for Carl, I'll bring him up now to go through that chart and his analysis that you have before you.

1397 Mr. Archer - Yes. I have a couple of questions I'd like to ask your traffic person, yes. Did you have anything else you wanted to add before that, Mr. Wilton?

1401 Mr. Wilton - No sir.

Mr. Archer - Okay.

Mr. Thornton - Mr. Chairman, before you get to traffic, I have some questions to ask Mr. Wilton. May I do so at this time?

1408 Mr. Archer - Go right ahead.

Mr. Thornton - Mr. Wilton, I notice that you referred a few minutes ago to profitability, which I understand. You said the sales of these are important. You also mentioned 113 units. These would be townhomes which have an HOA?

Mr. Wilton -

Yes sir. All of the ones I do have HOAs.

Mr. Thornton - Yes sir. Well, once people build something, they don't un-build it. I think you would concur with that. There is nothing wrong in making a profit; that's how America was built, more or less. But then you also have this thing about people who live in the area who were there first. There could be some legitimacy to the idea that you're bringing this in now and what's the rationale. Other than profitability, how come these 113 units are going here, and what's the thing about quality that you think would enhance this and would enhance this community?

The HOA factor is changing in Henrico and probably some areas of the country. I know that there are some HOAs that have become default. Now when you start out, it's like a baby, it's brand new. And so when people move in, things go smoothly. And then after a period of time, sometimes things don't go smoothly. So I don't think that we get an opportunity to ask builders about this, because you build, and then you're gone. Localities, we're still here, so we have to deal with that.

I guess I'm really asking you, do you also have in your comments a better reason than just profitability as to why this is a good thing to do.

Mr. Wilton - What we do, when we get a piece of property—and again, I develop it and I find the builder. We look at the County plans for it. So we go to the staff, and we find out exactly what's within the Comprehensive Plan. And this is Urban Residential. And under Urban Residential, it will allow townhouses. It'll allow a number of different things under it. We thought townhouses would be a good transition from the single-family. Because you're going against the interstate, you have to deal with the traffic, large buffers. And if you'll look, the traffic that we're generating, if you look at what could be done with that B-2, the traffic generated would be 9200 cars per day, I think. This alternative with the road coming right straight down from Scott Road down to Route 1 and a light there, we thought that was adequate. And again, VDOT will tell us if we have to do anything.

Basically, the County tells me through the Comprehensive Plan what they will allow here. And I think this is very compatible with the residential next door. But in fact, in most cases, I have a 100-foot buffer, treed buffer, that separates the two. Again, I give them separation, although a lot of times, Planning doesn't want residential from residential separated. But I think this does an extremely good job of that.

Mr. Thornton - I know this is a guestimate. What are we talking about a typical unit might cost?

1459 1460	Mr. Wilton - the price point.	About \$220,000 is what we've been told is going to be
1461	M. Therefore	The North and the second accordance
1462	Mr. Thornton -	That's the beginning, the max, or what?
1463	Mr. Wilton -	The 220 would be probably a standard price with
1464	111111	ain, I'm not the builder. He tells me what the average price
1465 1466		et the final plans done, I won't know exactly what his price
1467		I I get my engineering done. But right now it's going to be
1468	around \$220,000, give	or take. And that's probably a unit with some nice features
1469	added into it.	
1470	Mr. Thornton	And you understand my point of view that area these
1471	Mr. Thornton -	And you understand my point of view that once these
1472 1473		nake sure that they're quality units and that they're on par 's built in the County. That's significantly important.
1474	Part and the second	
1475	Mr. Wilton -	Yes sir. I think it is important. Something that would
1476		d agree with you, I wouldn't be involved in that. I've been
1477	here for over 30 years.	
1478	Mr. Thomas	Latter the control of the state
1479	Mr. Thornton -	I didn't use that term.
1480	Mr. Wilton -	But I've been here for ever 20 years. Every one of my
1481 1482		But I've been here for over 30 years. Every one of my rking. They're still there, and they're still paying their dues.
1483		townhouse subdivisions that I've done, and I've done a
1484		lerstand your points, but I also understand my history and
1485		r. I will continue it the same way.
1486		
1487	Mr. Archer -	Any more questions for Mr. Wilton?
1488		
1489	Mr. Leabough -	I still don't think I heard anything about the
1490	infrastructure and the t	
1491		
1492	Mr. Wilton -	Carl's coming up.
1493		
1494	Mr. Leabough -	As long as that's going to be addressed.
1495		
1496	Mr. Wilton -	I have the expert. What you have before you,
1497		to the first meeting, and everybody that came to the
1498		rybody who didn't come to the second still got a copy to
1499		it we found out when we went to the County. So everybody
1500	should know about tha	t. Carl?
1501		
1502	Mr. Archer -	Good evening, sir. Your name for the record, please.
1503		

Mr. Hultgren - Good evening, Mr. Chairman. My name is Carl Hultgren. I'm with Ramey Kemp & Associates. The business address is 4343 Cox Road in Innsbrook. We are a transportation engineering firm, and I manage our firm's office here in Richmond.

A couple of points on the traffic. First of all—and I believe you have this table in front of you. It kind of looks like this.

Mr. Archer - We have something similar. Yes, we do have it. We have it. It's about three pages deep. Go ahead, Mr. Hultgren.

Mr. Hultgren - This table is a comparison of the trip potential of the existing B-2 zoning versus what Mr. Wilton is asking for. The top line represents the B-2 zoning, which would be approximately 9800 trips per day on this property. The current plan that Mr. Wilton is proposing would generate about 725 daily trips. So that's a reduction of approximately 93 percent in the potential of the property. In other words, the current zoning would allow more than 13 times the number of trips that the townhouses would generate, just to put that in perspective.

We met with Mr. Cejka in Public Works last week, and he agreed that a full traffic study is not needed in this case because the trip potential is so low for the townhomes.

Mr. Wilton mentioned in his talk the widening that will occur on Scott Road across the property frontage. The road today is approximately 18 feet wide in that area and this project will add 9 feet of pavement along the property frontage. So it will go 18 feet from the center line to the edge. So it's going to be adding 9 feet of pavement along this property.

There have been some concerns about the volume of traffic on Scott Road. The County did a traffic count back in May and found that there are only 300 cars per day on Scott Road in this area, which is an extremely low amount of cars. A two-lane road that's designed and built to today's standard can carry probably 10, 12, 13,000 cars per day. Scott Road is obviously not designed and built to current standards; nobody's questioning that. Just for argument's sake, let's say the road can only carry half of what a normal road would carry. That would be about 5,000 cars per day. We're at 300 cars per day now. We expect these townhomes to only add about 100 cars a day going over the overpass, so we'd still be under 500 cars per day. The road can carry 5,000 cars per day. So it can still handle 10 times the traffic that we're talking about.

Going back to this table just one more time, the same table I talked about at the beginning. If we look at the a.m. and the p.m. peak hours, which are the busiest times of the day, even at full built-out with all 115 townhomes occupied, we're only projecting about 60 cars per hour total coming in and out of the development

1550 1551	during both of those time periods. So that's about one car per minute either coming in or out of the townhomes at the busiest time of the day. The		
1552	surrounding roads can definitely handle the traffic generated by these		
1553	townhomes.		
1554			
1555	With that I'll answer any	questions you may have.	
1556			
1557	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Mr. Hultgren. Any questions from the	
1558	Commission?		
1559			
1560	Mrs. Marshall -	I have a question.	
1561			
1562	Mr. Hultgren -	Yes.	
1563			
1564	Mrs. Marshall -	Looking at exhibit B along Scott Road where we're	
1565		o the development, is it going to be that wide the entire	
1566	length of the developme	ent on Scott Road?	
1567	A.C. VI. House		
1568	Mr. Hultgren -	That's correct. The additional nine feet of pavement	
1569		ty corner across both entrances, then up to this property	
1570	corner.		
1571	Mar Marris 0		
1572	Mrs. Marshall -	Okay.	
1573	Ma Hallman	The action for the second of	
1574	Mr. Hultgren -	The entire frontage of the property.	
1575	Mrs. Marshall -	Thank you	
1576	IVIIS. IVIAISITAII -	Thank you.	
1577 1578	Mr. Witte -	And that will be paved?	
1579	IVII. VVIILE -	And that will be paved?	
1580	Mr. Hultgren -	Yes sir.	
1581	Wit. Hallgren -	163 311.	
1582	Mr. Witte -	If a school bus is going to pick up children, they have	
1583	enough room to pull in t		
1584	onough room to pair in t		
1585	Female -	[Off microphone.] No.	
1586	romaio	[on merophone.] No.	
1587	Mr. Hultgren -	Will there will nine feet more than there is today.	
1588		The store that the real those dian there is today.	
1589	Mr. Witte -	So in essence, it won't block Scott Road totally. I	
1590	mean they still have to		
1591	,		
1592	Mr. Archer -	Well you have to stop for the school bus anyway.	
1593		, and the same of	
1594	Mr. Hultgren -	Scott Road is undivided, so they have to stop anyway	
1595	when they're picking up		

)	1596 1597	Mr. Witte -	May I ask a quick question, Mr. Chair?
	1598	W. VIIIO	may rack a quick question, mr. onan.
	1599 1600	Mr. Archer -	Go right ahead.
	1601 1602 1603	Mr. Leabough - residents—what does that	How does widening Scott Road by nine feet do the to for the residents in the community?
	1603 1604 1605 1606 1607 1608 1609	controls. If the other side that would also include ar	Well, that's all that Mr. Wilton can do. That's all he of Scott Road developed at some point in the future, and additional nine feet of pavement, and then you'd have a section through there. Mr. Wilton doesn't control that
	1610 1611	Mr. Leabough -	So it doesn't help them right now at all.
	1612 1613	Mr. Hultgren - It makes the road wider th	It's definitely an improvement to the existing condition. rough here.
	1614 1615 1616	Mr. Leabough - each edge of it.	Yes. But then they still go back to the narrow road on
)	1617 1618 1619	Mr. Hultgren -	Correct.
	1620 1621	Mr. Leabough -	So it's not really helpful, in the near term at least.
	1622 1623 1624	Mr. Hultgren - would say at least 5,000 o	That may be true, but the existing road can handle I cars a day. And we're talking about 500 cars per day.
	1625	Several voices -	[Off microphone; mumbling loudly.]
	1626 1627 1628	Mr. Archer - come up and speak in the	Folks, please don't comment unless you're going to microphone. Please. Thank you. Go ahead, sir.
	1629 1630 1631	Mr. Leabough - developed B-2, is there a	I'm just questioning—I mean if this property market interest in B-2 development here?
	1632 1633 1634	Mr. Hultgren -	I can't speak to that at all. That's outside my area.
	1635 1636	Mr. Leabough - I was wondering if there v	You were giving us numbers about B-2 development. vas a market for it at all.
	1637 1638 1639	Mr. Hultgren -	Like I said, I can't—
)	1640 1641	Mr. Leabough - for B-2? You gave us nun	Maybe Mr. Wilton can speak to that. Is there a market nber.

I'm not a commercial developer. Butch Ball actually Mr. Wilton was looking at that. When he got to the amount of traffic generated by the 9,300 cars per day, again, I think he looked at also a traffic light off of Parham. But I think VDOT did not like that idea. Again, with a commercial development coming in there, you have a straight shot of Scott Road coming down. VDOT could make him do some off-site improvement to use as B-2. But other than straightening that road for the 9,200 cars, he would have access to a light. And I think he could get development of a retail center of some type. Again because you have all that visibility along 95, his first thought was to do that. I came up with this idea. Again. I wasn't planning on trying to 9,200 cars through anywhere. I thought this was a much better alternative to that, that's all.

Mr. Leabough - The only reason I ask is because we make references to what could have happened if it was—

Mr. Wilton - Well again, it was zoned B-2 to be used as business.
Again, because it's right on the corner coming in, it is a good location for business. Now the access over the years obviously has gotten kind of scrambled.
That's up to Mr. Ball.

1663 Mr. Leabough - Thank you.

1665 Mr. Archer - All right. Anybody else?

Mr. Witte - I have a concern as to whether residential development there would be better than a shopping center or a hotel or office buildings in multi stories. In essence, people would be looking out over the neighborhood from a four-story office building or a four-story hotel and generating much more traffic than this residential.

I had the same issue many years ago when they were building this facility. I lived right behind it. I tried to fight it. When they convinced me that being closed on the weekends and not having people looking over into my backyard all the time was the better option, I didn't agree with it. But it turned out to be wonderful.

That would be my bigger issue. If they did something business or something that didn't need rezoning, they could just go in there and do it. And would it be worse for the community than adopting this situation? As Ms. Jones said, it might be one of those situations where you have to give a little, take a little to make something work. But I certainly don't have the answers. So that's food for thought.

1685 Mr. Archer - Thank you, Mr. Witte, for that food. We needed it.
1686 Anybody else with a question?

Ms. Churchill -[Off microphone.] Yes. Do I just come up here? 1688 1689 Mr. Archer -1690 Yes ma'am. State your name for the record, please. 1691 Ms. Churchill -My name is Mary Churchill. I just need some clarity 1692 here. So we're going from one-family residential to 112 townhouses, which are 1693 about—most people have two cars, sometimes three. So we're talking about at 1694 least 226 cars. Is that what I'm hearing, is that we're going from single-family—I 1695 know where Concord is. I've been that street, Scott Street. These are nice, 1696 beautiful single-family homes. So now I'm asking are we going now from there— 1697 and this area is zoned R-3, One-Family Residential, to now townhouses of 113 1698 townhouses, which most people have two cars. So that's 226 cars. Is this 1699 correct? Is this what I'm hearing? 1700 1701 1702 Mr. Archer -Well, the traffic study does not indicate that. 1703 I'm just saying, when you have a townhouse, you're Ms. Churchill -1704 going to have usually two cars. So 113 townhouses is easily 226 cars. 1705 1706 Lunderstand. Mr. Archer -1707 1708 1709 Ms. Churchill -And as the gentleman said, morning, afternoon, and evening. So there is going to be an increase. I guess my concern is we're going 1710 from one-family residence to multiple-family residence in an area-I don't know if 1711 you know this area. It's a wonderful little area. 1712 1713 Mr. Archer -I know it. 1714 1715 Ms. Churchill -And I don't know where you live; I'm sure it's not 1716 there. So I'm just concerned. Why would we want to do this? So I'm just asking 1717 you to think seriously about doing this. That's my comment. Thank you. 1718 1719 Thank you, ma'am, for your comment. Ma'am, before 1720 you speak, we've already used up all the opposition time, but I'm going to let you 1721 speak. Go ahead. 1722 1723 Well thank you. Hi, my name is Michele Deering. I live Ms. Deering -1724 on Scott Road. We will be across from this development. We don't have a 1725 problem with the development; we have a problem with not widening the road. It 1726 doesn't make sense. I understand he's increasing his area, but those same 1727 people still have to come down that road, the rest of the road. And the road is not 1728 wide. If you take a school bus and a Cadillac Escalade, they can't go down there 1729 at the same time. Somebody's going all the way over to the end of the road trying 1730

1731 1732 to pass or either hitting our mailbox. And that's our problem.

1500	Ca I would like to cale I	Japrico to do a study on our road. The traffic study he did
1733		Henrico to do a study on our road. The traffic study he did, do it for us. That way you can determine how many cars
1734		
1735		this road. I live there, and there's more than what they've
1736		d was off today, and he sees cars going up and down. You
1737		nere at the end of the road. You have the sports villa at the
1738		eople come through that road. They do not go to Parham
1739		ough our road because it's quick, it's easy, there's no
1740	stoplight, and you can	go 45, 50 miles per hour up and down that road.
1741	200000000000000000000000000000000000000	
1742	So that's what I'm ask	king for is a study done by your guys to determine how
1743	many cars are actually	y going down there. And then when you put 115 homes
1744		ach, and then if they have kids, that's three cars. We're
1745	_	ars going down that little strip right there, which is not being
1746	widened for us, widene	ed for him. So that's my request.
1747		
1748	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, ma'am.
1749		
1750	Ms. Deering -	Thank you.
1751		
1752	Mr. Archer -	Mr. Cejka, could you come up for just one second,
1753		question I want you to verify for me. Go ahead and state
1754	your name for the reco	rd, please.
1755		
1756	Mr. Cejka -	Yes sir. My name is John Cejka. I'm the traffic
1757	engineer.	
1758		
1759	Mr. Archer -	Mr. Cejka, in one of the meetings we had with the
1760	community, the question	on about the bridge came up, and it came again tonight.
1761	Would you explain the	situation about that bridge, and the fact that it is obsolete,
1762	and once it's gone, it w	on't be back, so they'll know that that's official?
1763		
1764	Mr. Cejka -	I did talk to my supervisors today. They said there is
1765	no discussion as of yet	if that bridge will be removed or not.
1766		
1767	Mr. Archer -	So there's not anything in the near future. Is that what
1768	you're saying?	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
1769	,	as a
1770	Mr. Cejka -	If it is removed, it won't be until after the new bridge is
1771	installed.	The second secon
1772		,
1773	Mr. Archer -	Okay.
1774		onaj.
1775	Mr. Cejka -	If it is removed.
1776	mi, oojku	in it to followed.
1770	Mary Assalts	AN A

Mr. Archer -

1777

1778

All right. Anybody else have any questions?

1779 1780 1781	Ms. Jones - of this year was done by the	I do. Mr. Cejka, the traffic count that was done in May ne County, correct?
1782 1783	Mr. Cejka -	That's correct.
1784 1785	Ms. Jones -	But it was not a full-blown study.
1786 1787	Mr. Cejka -	No ma'am. It was just a 24-hour count.
1788 1789	Ms. Jones -	Twenty-four hour count. Okay.
1790 1791	Mr. Witte -	And they had 300 cars for the 24-hour period.
1792 1793 1794 1795 1796	9	Correct. The study was done 150 feet west of the at the parcel. Basically where the driveway is for the is where we did the study so we'd get an accurate
1797 1798 1799 1800	Mr. Archer - how car trips are calcula constitutes a car trip?	Mr. Cejka, before you sit down, would you explain ited? I don't think everybody understands that. What
1801 1802 1803 1804	Mr. Cejka - point, such as the drivew When they come back, it's	A car trip is whenever somebody passes a single ay to the development. When they leave, it's one trip. sone trip.
1805 1806 1807	Mr. Archer - correct?	So any single car trip is actually two car trips. Is that
1808 1809 1810	Mr. Cejka - back, it's two trips.	That is correct. If they were to go to work and come
1811 1812 1813	Mr. Archer - 150 leavings and a 150 co	Okay. So in that case, a 300-count car trip would be oming back home.
1814 1815	Mr. Cejka -	Approximately yes.
1816 1817 1818	Mr. Archer - Anybody else?	Okay. All right. That's all the questions I have.
1819 1820 1821	Mr. Thornton - those townhomes you ha that we heard tonight?	Ms. Churchill raised a question about if in one of ve three cars. How does that relate to the traffic data
1822 1823 1824	Mr. Cejka -	Related to the number of trips that are done in a day?

1825 Mr. Thornton - Right.

Mr. Cejka - Actually, we get our numbers from the Institute of Transportation Engineers. It's a formula that you use by them. They actually calculate almost 12 trips per townhouse. So that would six leaving, six coming back. So even though there may only be two cars per townhouse, well they go to the grocery store, they go to work, they go to soccer practice. They leave the house and come back more than just two times a day. We're estimating approximately 12 trips per townhome per day.

Mr. Archer - Anybody else. Thank you, sir. Okay. I guess we're at the point where we have to make a decision, so let me note a few things, if I may.

I did attend all of the community meetings that were held. We did get a lot of questions asked and a lot of questions answered. In this particular instance, the things that staff had a problem with, Mr. Wilton has handled in the revised proffers that we received. Do we have to make a motion on these proffers? They were dated the 10th.

Mr. Emerson - Yes sir, you have to waive the time limits.

Mr. Archer - That's what I meant, yes. All right.

Now, let me see if I can put together all the pieces that I have here and try to come up with a decent answer.

We've had a lot of discussion about widening Scott Road. Anybody who's ever driven Scott Road knows that it is exactly like you all described it. I'm not saying that it's anybody's fault at this particular point in time, but I can speak to Mr. Wilton has said when he talks about him not being able to widen Scott Road. He doesn't own Scott Road. The only part of Scott Road that he can handle is the part that's devoted to the property that he wants to develop.

 I think everybody out there agrees that Scott Road needs to be widened. And I have to say this because the first meeting that I attended, the question came up about Scott Road. And everybody said we need to widen this road. And then somebody stood up and said, "But don't take any of my land when you do it." Now I'm saying that because I need to make a point. At some point in time, Scott Road may be widened. But when it does, if it runs in front of your house, then you're going to have to lose some land in order for Scott Road to be widened. I don't know what it would take or what cause would generate something to make that happen.

The other point that I need to make is we tend to think when we talk about car trips or when we talk people leaving to go to work or wherever it is people go—we have 115 units—we also assume that everybody is going to leave at the

same time, all 115 units, two cars per unit, and they're all going to be out there at the same going the same direction. And that's just not the way it works. It seldom ever works that way. Everybody is not going the same direction, and they all are not going to leave at the same time.

Traffic is always bothersome. You build one house, you increase the traffic. To my knowledge, I do not believe in my lifetime we will ever see traffic decrease anywhere. We hear people come in all the time and say, "We have too much traffic on our road. We need to widen the road and make it better." Guess what's going to happen when you widen a road and make it better—you have more traffic because everybody is going to want to go that way.

I don't have a solution to all of the things that are going to happen. But I do know this—and this is one of the things that bothers me about what we have now—that we an unconditional piece of B-2 land. *Unconditional* means there are no proffers on it. You can build whatever fits within the Zoning Code and there's nothing anybody can do about it. And as one of the studies indicates, you could easily go from 300 traffic trips per day to over 9,000 of commercial traffic. And as Mr. Witte indicated, you could also end up with a development where you would have high-capacity and high-story buildings that would be overlooking where you are.

So there's a lot that has to be considered in trying to make a decision here. In reading what has been done in the staff report, Mr. Sehl has indicated that staff supports the request and that he has gotten from Mr. Wilton the things that could be used to make this a better case.

This is not the last that you'll hear of this because this body makes a recommendation to the Board, and the Board has the final decision. They have to think about all of these things that are here tonight too. The property is B-2. That zoning has not changed. I don't know exactly when it was zoned B-2 but it is right now. So that commercial development could take place without anything from us other than the required approvals and making sure that they meet all the standards that the County requires.

Having said all that, I would first like to make a motion to waive the time limits on the revised proffers.

Mr. Witte - Second.

Mr. Archer - Motion by Mr. Archer and seconded by Mr. Witte to waive the time limits. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

Now again, with the understanding that if Mr. Wilton develops this property he can only do whatever needs to be done on the portion of the property that he

owns and controls. Having said all that, I will now move that this be sent to the 1916 Board with a recommendation for approval. 1917 1918 Mr. Witte -Second. 1919 1920 Motion by Mr. Archer and seconded by Mr. Witte. All Mr. Archer -1921 in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes. 1922 1923 Acting on a motion by Mr. Archer, seconded by Mr. **REASON -**1924 Witte, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the 1925 Board of Supervisors grant the request because it conforms to the Urban 1926 Residential recommendation of the Comprehensive Plan and would not 1927 adversely affect the adjoining area if properly developed as proposed. 1928 1929 Mr. Emerson -Mr. Chairman, we now move on to-1930 1931 Excuse me one second, Mr. Secretary. When will the Mr. Archer -1932 Board meet on this? 1933 1934 Mr. Emerson -September 13th. 1935 1936 Mr. Archer -September 13th is then the Board will meet here in 1937 this room to discuss this for approval or disapproval. Thank you all for coming. 1938 I'm sorry, Mr. Secretary, go right ahead. 1939 1940 1941 Mr. Emerson -It's not a problem, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Chairman, we now move on to the next case, which also appears on page 2 of your agenda. It 1942 is REZ2016-00028, James W. Theobald/Hirschler Fleischer for Earl Templeton. 1943 The staff report will be presented by Ms. Rosemary Deemer. 1944 1945 James W. Theobald/Hirschler Fleischer for Earl REZ2016-00028 1946 Templeton: Request to conditionally rezone from R-4 One-Family Residence 1947 District and B-1 Business District to B-2C Business District (Conditional) Parcels 1948 784-754-6140, 6324, 6505, 7628, 8004, and 8014 containing 2.910 acres located 1949 at the northeast intersection of Brook (U.S. Route 1) and Wilkinson Roads. The 1950 applicant proposes retail sales. The uses will be controlled by proffered 1951 1952 conditions and zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Commercial Concentration and Suburban Residential 2, density 1953 should not exceed 3.4 units per acre. Part of the site is located in the Enterprise 1954 1955 Zone. 1956 1957 Mr. Archer -Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Is there anyone present who is opposed to REZ2016-00028, James W. Theobald/Hirschler Fleischer for 1958 Earl Templeton? We do have opposition. Thank you, we'll get to you. 1959

1960 1961 Ms. Deemer, how are you, ma'am?

1962 Ms. Deemer - Fine, thank you.

Mr. Archer - Go right ahead.

Ms. Deemer - Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, the applicant is requesting to rezone 2.91 acres from R-4 One-Family Residence District and B-1 Business District to B-2 Business District (Conditional) to allow the development of a stand-alone O'Reilly's auto parts store and a small retail center. The property is bounded by Brook Road to the west, Wilkinson Road to the south, Seminary Avenue to the east and unimproved Beecham Road to the north. An alley traverses the property in a north/south direction.

The western half of the property, between the alley and Brook Road is zoned B-1. The eastern half of the property is zoned R-4 One-Family Residence District and includes two single-family dwellings. Adjacent zoning in the immediate area is a combination of residential and business district zoning with a small amount of office across Brook Road.

The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Commercial Concentration and Suburban Residential 2, at a density not to exceed 3.4 units per acre. The applicant has submitted amended proffers dated August 4, 2016, which you have received this evening, to assure several quality aspects of the development including, but not limited to:

- · A proffered concept plan;
- · Architectural elevations and materials:
- A screening wall six-feet in height parallel to the western property line:
- A landscaped strip a minimum of 25-feet in width along the western property line planted to the West Broad Street Overlay standards;
- Sidewalks installed or refurbished along Brook and Wilkinson Roads
- Signage limited to six-feet in height; and.
- Deliveries limited to the Brook Road entrance.

The proposed uses are consistent with the commercial designation of the Comprehensive Plan recommendation but not with the residential designation. Incorporating the residential acreage, however, provides an opportunity for a better designed project, allowing for enough area to incorporate a wall across the western property line, buffering the uses from Seminary Avenue and excluding access to the residential street.

Staff can support this request. I'd be happy to answer any questions that you may have this evening.

Mr. Archer - Thank you, Ms. Deemer. Are there questions from the Commission? No questions. Thank you. We do have opposition on this case. And I think in this instance, I'd like to hear from the opposition first. Would

anyone who wishes to speak come up and state your name for the record. You all are aware of the 10-minute limitation that we discussed prior to now? So we don't need to go over it again. Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Dawn Marshall - My name is Dawn Marshall. I live at 7500 Seminary Avenue, which is two blocks south of the proposed rezoning area.

I'm against the proposed zoning as it is, as it's presented. I do not want to have the residential area rezoned. Right now, that area at 7701 Brook Road is zoned B-1, which will be an auto parts store, just like it is down the road. We have an auto parts store down the road, an AutoZone at Lakeside and Brook Road. They built there within the last I believe ten years. And they put a masonry wall back there, and they've stayed within the parameters of what's already there. That's what I'm asking for, that they conform to the area that's already there.

We've talked with Mr. Templeton. We've had two meetings with Mr. Templeton, and we've asked him to compromise on the building and have him build in the front part of that property and not take the houses in the back. We have an association there. The only way you're going to get new members into the association is to have residents that live in the area. If you take these houses away, you're taking away residential people that could contribute to our association and our neighborhood. So I'm against that.

I'm for improving Brook Road. That is an eyesore at that corner, it really is. I've lived there for 30 years. It's an eyesore. I'd like to see something there. I'm not against an auto parts store. I just want it to be within the confines that are already there and not rezone the residential. Like I said, AutoZone two blocks down, they built there, they have a brick wall back there. They stayed there. That's no problem.

And we asked about him reconsidering the building, instead of going deep, going east to west, why not build the buildings north/south and then make the other little property there smaller than what they're proposing.

Stay with what we've got, and we'll be fine with that. But please don't take our residential areas. I moved to this area because I love this area, and I don't want to see houses being torn down for more business. Stay within what's there, and confine to the Brook Road Corridor Study, and make things better.

Mr. Archer - Thank you, Ms. Marshall. Any questions for Ms. Marshall? Thank you, ma'am. We have about 7-1/2 minutes left if someone else wants to speak.

Ms. Tillis - Hi. My name is Frances Tillis, and I live in the area.

2052 I'm just going to go over a couple of concerns.

The auto parts stores, there are two. There's Advance and AutoZone within walking distance. I don't think it's going to be very much of a benefit to the area to have another auto parts store right there. I would think that if they would change it to maybe a 24-hour pharmacy it could benefit the people at St. Joseph's Villa across the street. Most of those people are handicapped. You see wheelchairs going up and down Brook Road constantly. Something along those lines as a development would be great, keeping with the residential people.

It's also an aging area in Chamberlayne Farms. Many of those residents are aging. They're either going to be selling soon, and we're going to have new people coming obviously. But something like the pharmacy, that's also another benefit. Or a restaurant or something that brings the family and the community together. I can't see another auto parts store or another used car dealership or another garage if you're trying to revitalize that area. It's not going to bring the benefits to that area and the property values they'd like to see.

With the traffic studies, I'm sure they're going to go over, back and forth—I hope they took into consideration the people of St. Joseph's Villa that need to cross the street. I've seen them get stuck in the middle there in their wheelchairs, and it's horrible.

But that was mainly what I'd like to see.

Mr. Archer -

Thank you, ma'am. Any questions? Thank you.

Ms. Robertson

Good evening.

Mr. Archer -

Good evening.

Ms. Robertson My name is Joann Robertson, and I live at 7608 Seminary Avenue, which is directly across the street, both of my driveways, to the proposed building. I'm on the corner of Seminary and Wilkinson. The back of my house runs parallel with the Pic N Pay on Brook Road. The front of my house faces Seminary, and the side of my house faces Wilkinson.

I'm in a real bad position. But the first thing before I go into that, I would like to ask—and I don't think this has been brought up. What impact does this have on our tax assessment? Within the last six years, our property assessments have decreased, mine particularly, \$25,000. What impact does this rezoning have on our property values as a residential area? That hasn't been addressed at all.

The main issue, I'm the one man out. Most of my neighbors will benefit from an improvement. My driveway, I have a pull through driveway. Right now, I have horrible problems getting into the Seminary Avenue driveway because of the traffic. I understand the proposed turn lane is going to widen the road, which would help keep the flow a little faster than what it is. But I have had to allow the

2100 2101 2102 2103	Munster's yard—because	which faces Wilkinson Road, to grow up—I look like the of the traffic. I cannot access my side driveway. And se proposed entrance to this new facility will be exactly
2104 2105 2106 2107 2108 2109 2110 2111	They are my two concerns. I'm 70 percent in favor of the proposal that they've submitted because I like what I hear with the traffic being diverted somewhat and being faster. But I am the one solely that's impacted totally by this building. The main thing I'm concerned about is my tax assessment. I am retired. I'm a former Henrico County employee. Yay. But I'm not real happy with what's happening with the tax assessment going down and the idea that this auto parts store is going to increase the value of our property. I don't think so.	
2112 2113	So they are my main conc	erns. Thank you for your time.
2114 2115	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Ms. Robertson.
2116 2117 2118 2119	Mr. Witte - before this Commission th	Excuse me. I think you're the first person that's come at wants to pay more taxes.
2120 2121 2122	Ms. Robertson - for 179,000 when it was 23	Well, when I go to sell my house, I don't want to sell it 30,000 six years ago.
2123 2124	Mr. Witte -	I agree with you.
2124 2125 2126	Several people -	[Off microphone.] Mumbling and talking.
2127 2128 2129	Mr. Archer - addressing the Commission	Folks, let's stay in order please, unless you're on. Go right ahead, sir.
2130 2131 2132 2133		My name is David Green. I live in the new Vaughan venue, which is one block from Seminary, which is one that they want to rezone to retail.
2134 2135 2136	I submitted a petition a coneighborhood. Have you s	uple days ago with eight signatures from people in my seen that? Okay. Briefly, for everyone, it says:
2137 2138 2139	Avenue, call upon t	of Vaughan Heights, located on Chamberlayne he County of Henrico, Virginia, to stop rezoning. s property rezoned for retail use.
2140 2141 2142 2143 2144	turn right onto Brook, traffi There are two exits. There	offic. Even if there's a lane inserted on Wilkinson as you ic coming other ways is still going to cause congestion. It's one from Wilkinson and one from Brook. The one on top two blocks before that, right across from my house.

That's one issue.

	2146			
_	2147		ooked at and denied. Since then, there has been a police	
	2148	station put up. There are	e new condos being built called StyleCraft condos at Villa	
	2149	Park and Parham. That	t's also going to increase traffic. I've see two accidents	
	2150	right there where they w	ant to rezone the lot, down a little ways close to me and	
	2151	my neighbor, who was ji	ust speaking, because the traffic was heavy.	
	2152			
	2153	Another thing is I read	in their proposal that they won't have trash pickup or lot	
	2154	cleanup before 7 a.m. o	r after 7 p.m. And that's when the traffic starts picking up	
	2155	on Wilkinson. That's also	o a concern of mine.	
	2156			
	2157		the value of my home. I was thinking about selling it. And	
	2158		ic no one-most people aren't going to want to move in	
	2159	there if they can't get out on the street.		
	2160			
	2161		e road at Wilkinson as you turn onto Brook, it doesn't	
	2162	seem that it's going to take care of the problem. In addition, the AutoZone and		
	2163		the street and the Walmart, I don't really think we need	
	2164	an O'Reillys there.		
	2165			
	2166	Those are my concerns.	Any questions?	
	2167			
	2168	Mr. Archer -	All right. Any questions for Mr. Green? No questions.	
_	2169	We have used up all of	the time for the opposition.	
	2170			
	2171	Male -	[Off microphone.] I want to speak in favor.	
	2172			
	2173	Mr. Archer -	I'm sorry?	
	2174		10%	
	2175	Male -	[Off microphone.] Can I speak in favor?	
	2176		NAME - 1 - 14 14	
	2177	Mr. Archer -	Why don't we wait until the applicant comes forward,	
	2178	and then you can speak	in favor. This is the opposition's time right now.	
	2179	M. Assissa	New communications 2	
	2180	Mr. Archer -	I'm sorry ma'am?	
	2181	M. Daniela	IOSincorpore 11'm appeared to it Con Langel?	
	2182	Ms. Brownlee -	[Off microphone.] I'm opposed to it. Can I speak?	
	2183		NAS have shout four accords on the clock but I'll give	
	2184	Mr. Archer -	We have about four seconds on the clock, but I'll give	
	2185	you a minute. Come on	up.	
	2186	M. Davida	I'm Charan Brownless and I live at 7505 Comingny	
	2187	Ms. Brownlee -	I'm Sharon Brownlee, and I live at 7505 Seminary	
	2188	proposed I concur with	a block and a half down from where this development is h Ms. Marshall, the first speaker, and a lot of what the	
	2189		aid. We're not against building on the front part of this	
	2190	property which is also	dy zoned B-1 and would accommodate what the builder	
	2191	property, which is alrea	dy zoned b-1 and would accommodate what the builder	

wants to build there. What we're against is somebody coming in and taking houses down in our neighborhood.

And I'd like to refer to the 2026 Henrico Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 5, Land Use. Residential Keystone #4 states that encroachment of non-residential uses into residential areas should be avoided. Razing two homes in our relatively small neighborhood and rezoning this land from residential to B-2C certainly constitutes an encroachment into our neighborhood community. The County recommends also a 65-to-35 percent ratio of residential to businesses in the area and County officials involved in the revitalization study of Brook Road frequently commented that the number of residences needs to grow in order to have a healthy balance of business and residential.

Then refer to the 2026 Plan, Chapter 3, the Visions, Goals, and Objectives, Land Use and the Community Character Objectives. Objective #13 states: Provide for the logical arrangement of land uses which offers transitions for more intense to less intense uses. This is a high-intensity use that they're proposing, tearing down houses, putting in quite a few businesses on that lot. So that's a high-intensity use, and it's right at the corner where our neighborhood starts.

So we propose that if he would compromise and just use the front part of the lot, which is already zoned B-1, make his businesses a little bit smaller, then that would be a lower intensity use of that area.

As far as the Brook Road Revitalization Plan, I was on the committee for that. It was often stated—on page 13 you can refer to that—that the lack of continuity is a major problem on Brook Road. Driving the corridor, the experience is one of disorder and confusion that discourages potential shoppers and customers. What this development does as it's proposed is reach back in our neighborhood, which no other business does along that road. They all stay within the confines of where the Enterprise Zone is located so they can benefit from that. They're not reaching back in our neighborhood to build. So the study recommends that everybody stay within that continuity to make it more impressive as you drive up Brook Road, to improve it.

And also, on page 8 of the study of Brook Road, the property that we're talking about falls within the northern gateway area of the revitalization along Brook Road and not in the auto-oriented zone, which is located between Hilliard Road and Lakeside Avenue, where Ms. Marshall was talking about the AutoZone and the Advance Auto that are already there. They are located in the AutoZone area. But this developer wants to do is put it in the northern gateway where St. Joseph's Villa is, where it's beautiful land. And he wants to be a high-intensity use there in the midst of all that. That goes against the Brook Road study.

Thank you.

Mr. Archer - Thank you, Mr. Brownlee. Any questions before she sits down? Okay. We're going to hear from the applicant, please.

Mr. Theobald - Good evening, Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Jim Theobald, and I'm here this evening on behalf of Mr. Earl Templeton, who is with us in the back of the room. Mr. Chairman, I think I'd like to reserve maybe just a minute for my comments, but I think my presentation will be brief, as we do have people here, I believe, who are prepared to speak in favor of this case.

This is a request to rezone 2.91 acres from B-1 and R-4 to B-2 with substantial proffered conditions. The professional planning staff has found that the request is consistent with many of the goals of the County's Land Use Plan, including the section regarding the Brook Road Corridor Revitalization Reinvestment Opportunity Area. The site is also within an Enterprise Zone.

The parcel is at the northeast corner of Brook Road and Wilkinson Road, behind the Walmart, and is currently occupied by a thrift store and two rental homes behind it, which are owned by the seller of the entire parcel.

The request would permit the construction of a small retail center, anchored by an O'Reilly Auto Parts store and a Dunkin' Donuts. Other retail spaces would also be available. The concept plan is really the result of two meetings with the North Henrico Civic Association and neighbors, and this plan has been revised a number of times in order to attempt to address their concerns. We've added a six-foot masonry wall in the back—and note that it's off the property line—with landscaping drawn from the West Broad Overlay District standards between that wall and Seminary Avenue. And there's landscaping in a 25-foot space along both the front at Brook Road and Wilkinson Road, again planted to West Broad Overlay District standards as we cited in the proffer.

We've limited the hours of trash pickup and parking lot cleaning. We're required to put in our leases that tenants limit deliveries both entering and exiting to the entrance on Brook Road. We have limitations on the height of lighting. We are providing sidewalks along Brook Road and Wilkinson. And we're doing significant Wilkinson Road and Brook Road improvements suggested by your Transportation Department and VDOT, including turn lanes on both sides, an additional dedication of roadways. And we are doing the work, not just dedicating.

The elevation you see before you represents quality materials, brick, EIFS, including the sides and the back. This would be the other retail space to the north of the site. Other proffers include these elevations that are before you, no speakers for any user being audible beyond the property lines, and a variety of use restrictions including no gas stations, no traditional fast foot type uses. We

can have a Dunkin' Donuts or Starbucks type use. No check-cashing, no title car loans, no payday loans, etc.

So in summary, I believe this is a very thoughtful request by the applicant that has only gotten better with interaction with the community. I really don't know what else one could offer on a case like this in terms of proffers, as I believe we've addressed pretty much everything that we can think of.

I do respect the comments by folks of the opposition, but I honestly believe that in respecting those comments, you also have to respect the community at large. And I promise you that their property values won't be increase by leaving the site the way it is today. I believe they can only improve to have more vitality. Those two rental homes in the back will be incorporated into this site which as staff suggested causes better circulation, a better development plan for all.

The last case that was turned down ten years ago, you may recall the applicant refused to build a wall in the middle of the parcel. To build a wall in the middle of this parcel just leaves the two rental homes on the other side of that wall, which I don't think enhances residential development in the area.

So for all those reasons, I would respectfully request that you recommend approval of this case to the Board of Supervisors. And I'd be more than happy to answer any questions.

I did want add—I'm sorry, but one comment is that I, too, have copies of the Brook Road Enhancement Study. I have read it thoroughly, as well as the Brook Road Special Strategy Area for the Northern Gateway. And I believe we meet most if not all of these criteria from encouraging the installation of the gateway feature—Mr. Templeton has been working with the umbrella Association up there to provide some funding for gateway identity markers. It encourages new business and other uses to locate in the Brook Road corridor that will improve the economic vitality of the area. Uniformed designed themes using similar color schemes; common architecture; building materials; sidewalks; appropriate buffers, preferably masonry walls, etcetera, etcetera, etcetera. So I really do believe that we're square with those plans and that we further results of the study that you all spent so much time on, rather than denigrate from it.

I'm happy to answer any questions.

2322 Mr. Archer - Thank you, Mr. Theobald. Are there questions from the Commission?

Ms. Jones - The masonry wall and the landscaping that has been discussed. Obviously, views from the neighborhood are very important to the neighborhood as well as I'm sure to your client. Do you expect that with the density of the landscaping and the height of the wall and the height of the

buildings proposed that there will be truly a visual separation between the retail and the residential?

Mr. Theobald - Well there certainly will be on the back side with a six-

Mr. Theobald - Well there certainly will be on the back side with a six-foot masonry wall and plantings on the Seminary side. These are not tall buildings. A six-foot wall will easily cover the height of a car. We were out measuring cars with Mr. Emerson yesterday on another matter. Along Wilkinson Road, you know the West Broad Overlay District standards are not meant to screen; they're meant to aesthetically enhance an area. So this 25-foot planted area along Brook Road and Wilkinson, no I cannot assure you that that's going to screen. It's not meant to screen. It will certainly substantially mitigate, but it's not meant to block out the views of the site. The West Broad Overlay District standards, the landscape standards are significant, however, and obviously they're represented all up and down West Broad.

Ms. Jones - They are substantial, yes. I don't know whether it's even possible for you to speak to this point, but I do realize that there are a lot of folks in the area who would be coming here possibly in wheelchairs or in some other kind of situation that might indicate that they need those broad sidewalks. How wide is this sidewalk going to be?

Mr. Theobald - I think this is a standard VDOT sidewalk, which I believe is five feet in width.

Ms. Jones - Five feet? Is there any access across Brook Road envisioned that would make it easier for folks to cross to your establishment there, to your parcel?

Mr. Theobald - The traffic lights are in. I don't know if there's a pedestrian call signal. There is?

Ms. Jones - There is? Okay. I couldn't remember from when I was out there. All right. Thank you.

Mr. Archer - All right. There were some people who wanted to be in support of this. Would you want to come forward and speak, please? You have about 3-1/2 minutes left.

Mr. Hicks - Good evening. My name is Charles Hicks. I'm a retired school teacher, a mathematics school teacher. I'm vice president of the Northern Henrico Civic Association. When Mr. Templeton came to our meeting over at the clubhouse—I live in the Chamberlayne Hills section—it was like a breath of fresh air. That corner is the pits. That building that sat right there on that corner doesn't have a curb to it. How would you describe it? A gas station. There have been so many other things. Now it's a Fred Sanford little place where

people just hang stuff out to be sold. We managed to get the guy across the street to asphalt the driveway.

I heard somebody say we don't need another auto place. But that's a highway, that's the number one highway. On number one highway, you have Hardee's, you have Burger Chef, and you have Wendy's. You're going to have three or four. This is 301, number 1. But that area, nothing has really happened in that area I know in the 20 years that I've been here. They managed to move away the trailers down the street and make a little park area out of that. Even Lakeside has moved ahead of us.

After some of the people here that spoke opposed to it that were at the meeting, I drove around and tried to really take a look at Seminary and where they live in reference to the building. It only affects two homes. If you were to take time and drive over there, you will find that there is plenty space.

And I like the design. It's just the opposite of one you saw earlier about the apartments going up. This was nice. That area has not seen any new development in that area in 20 years. I mean, come on now. It's a beautiful building. I know it's an auto parts, but you have gas stations and you've got car repair. That's the nature of a business in an area on a major highway. In certain sections, it divides up the County.

Wilkinson, Brook Road, those are business areas. With this development coming in, you would get curbs that you don't have there right now. You would get walkways, five-foot walkways, which you don't have right now. It's just a little mud pit up there right now.

 So when he came and talked about it, we got to talking, and we said we haven't had anything looking fresh for a long time, we managed to put up entry wall signs into the Chamberlayne Hills, some of you may have noticed. Chamberlayne Farms had walls out that didn't have signage to that. We have that now. People are paying attention to their lawns. Actually, that whole area is coming together. Even the people that are opposed, there are 3,000 residents in that area.

And we have rebranded ourselves—Chamberlayne—Northern Henrico Civic Association, not Chamberlayne anymore. I'm retired, so I'm trying to save our community. I have members here, if you would stand, that's trying to do the same thing. We meet and we're serious.

There's so much I can say, but I just can't think of it.

2416 Mr. Archer - Don't worry about it, sir, you've used up all your time 2417 anyway.

h	2419	Mr. Hicks -	We need that, we really do. I'm sorry about the people	
~	2420		I've looked at it. I just want you all to drive and look at	
	2421	it, and just see what it affe	ects in that area. I heard a lady say one time my kids	
	2422	will be playing, blah blah blah, like that. And if you ride down North Wilkinson,		
	2423	there are no kids playing there. You can't even ride a bicycle down North		
	2424	Wilkinson-I mean Wilkins		
	2425			
	2426	When you take a stand on	e way or another, you have to say something, and you	
	2427		espect that. But we need this, we really do. Thank you	
	2428	for giving me the opportuni		
	2429		•	
	2430	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Mr. Hicks. Any questions before he takes	
	2431	a seat? No applause, pleas	se. Sir, we've used up all the time.	
	2432			
	2433	Male -	[Off microphone.] Do you have a question?	
	2434			
	2435	Male -	[Off microphone.] No, I just wanted to say I concur	
	2436		s said, has shared with you this evening. And Mr.	
	2437	Templeton, I'm most appreciative of what he's trying to do. I've been a resident of		
	2438		applaud Mr. Templeton and what he's trying to do.	
	2439		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
	2440	Mr. Archer -	All right. Thank you, sir.	
n.	2441		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
V	2442	Male -	I thank you for your time.	
	2443			
	2444	Mr. Archer -	That's all the time we have. Thank you so much.	
	2445			
	2446	Male -	[Off microphone.] Okay, thank you.	
	2447			
	2448	Mr. Haynes -	[Off microphone.] Mr. Chairman, can you give 60	
	2449	seconds [inaudible]?		
	2450			
	2451	Mr. Archer -	You want to speak in favor or in opposition? Can you	
	2452	do 30?		
	2453			
	2454	Mr. Haynes -	[Off microphone.] I could, but I'd only get half of it	
	2455	said.		
	2456			
	2457	Mr. Archer -	Everybody in approval of another 60 seconds?	
	2458			
	2459	Ms. Jones -	Sure.	
	2460			
	2461	Mr. Archer -	Come on, sir.	
	2462			
	2463	Female -	[Off microphone; inaudible.]	
-	2464			

2465	Mr. Haynes -	[Off microphone.] It won't take but a second.
2466	Mr. Archan	Pro corn 2
2467	Mr. Archer -	I'm sorry?
2468	Female -	[Off microphone.] [Inaudible] giving this gentleman 60
2469 2470		asked for [inaudible] here. And you denied the request.
2471		
2472	Mr. Archer -	No, I didn't deny his request. Mr. Christian did have
2473 2474	something to say and the	nis gentleman—are you in favor of this, sir?
2475	Mr. Haynes -	[Off microphone.] Yes sir.
2476	Mr. Archer -	We're on the same side of the coin.
2477	Wir. Archer -	We le on the same side of the com.
2478 2479	Female -	[Off microphone.] I know, but you know I have to deal
2480	with Mr. Christian [inau	
2481	With Mr. Official (mass	21010].
2482	Mr. Archer -	Mr. Christian, you're in favor, am I correct?
2483		
2484	Mr. Christian -	[Off microphone.] Yes I arn, yes.
2485		
2486	Mr. Archer -	Okay, all right. Well we understand now. Go ahead,
2487	sir.	
2488		
2489	Mr. Haynes -	My Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, I'm Sonny
2490		rcial property on both sides of Route 1 in the Enterprise
2491		or of this because this could catapult a revitalization of the
2492		d down Route 1, which is desperately needed. A lot of
2493	•	een made, but there are a lot more to be made. And I
2494		'm totally in favor of it. But imagine if everyone said well
2495		and you already have an Advance Auto, suppose there
2496		ts store in this town. What do you think your parts would
2497	cost? Thank you.	
2498		
2499	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Mr. Haynes. Okay, that's all the time.
2500	We're done.	
2501		100 H
2502	Mr. Hicks -	[Off microphone.] Just one little thing.
2503		West Constant Constant
2504	Mr. Archer -	I'm trying to be polite here.
2505	44 18 6	
2506	Mr. Hicks -	I know. But the building itself fits in with the Popeye's
2507		that are in that shopping center. They have recione that
2508		the color—I went over in Glenside and looked at an
2509	O'Reillys, and it fits. It v	vould be a nice thing, it really would.

Mr. Archer -Okay, I have to cut you off Mr. Hicks. Thank you so 2511 2512 much. 2513 Female -[Off microphone.] Are we allowed to ask a question? 2514 2515 Mr. Archer -2516 Ma'am, we're done with this one. 2517 2518 Ms. Marshall -[Off microphone.] Mr. Chairman, I'd just like to say since he got a chance to speak again [inaudible]-2519 2520 Mr. Archer -2521 Ma'am? Ma'am, we're done. 2522 Ms. Marshall -[Off microphone.] The only thing we're against is the 2523 rezoning. We're for what he's going to put there. If O'Reillys wants to go there, 2524 that's fine. We're just against the rezoning of the residential area. 2525 2526 Mr. Archer -I understand, Ms. Marshall. This will come up before 2527 the Board again on September 13th. Okay. I want to do a couple of things in my 2528 summary here. One thing I want to do is to thank Ms. Brownlee. Ms. Brownlee 2529 has been working on that revitalization committee for how many years, Ms. 2530 2531 Brownlee, 10, 15? Something like that. I think their committee has done a very decent job in upholding Route 1 and improving it as it went north from down 2532 around here, I believe, or maybe a little bit on the other side. Yes, on the other 2533 side, because Martin's was a part of that revitalization committee. 2534 2535 Looking at the study and the comments that have been made tonight, when this 2536 was first presented by Mr. Templeton, it was far different from what it is now. 2537 There were things that were presented that Mr. Templeton has tried to address. 2538 He certainly has done enough meeting with the community to try to address 2539 those things. And I think by and large he has done all that we could ask of him in 2540 trying to make this fit into the community. 2541 2542 I know we can't always satisfy everybody. Somebody back there mentioned that 2543 they were 70 percent in approval of it. I wish we could get 70 percent in all our 2544 cases; it would be a lot easier. 2545 2546 In light of that and in view of the fact that as Mr. Theobald indicated, improving 2547 that corner certainly will not do anything to decrease anybody's property value. If 2548 anything, it would have to certainly enhance the property value. Because in the 2549 condition that it's in now and has been in for the last 20 years, it hasn't done 2550 much for anyone's property value. 2551 2552 So based on all of that and trying not to be too long, my motion is to send this to 2553 the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval. 2554

Mr. Leabough -

2555

2556

Second.

2557	
2558	Mr. Archer - Motion by Mr. Archer and seconded by Mr. Leabough.
2559	All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.
2560	
2561	REASON - Acting on a motion by Mr. Archer, seconded by Mr.
2562	Leabough, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend
2563	the Board of Supervisors grant the request because it would not adversely affect
2564	the adjoining area if properly developed as proposed and the proffered conditions
2565	will provide appropriate quality assurances not otherwise available.
2566	
2567	Mr. Emerson - Mr. Chairman, we now move on to page 3 of your
2568	agenda where we have two companion cases that I will call together and they will
2569	be presented together but will require separate motions. The first case is
2570	REZ2016-00025—
2571	
2572	Mr. Archer - Mr. Secretary, could you suspend for just a minute
2573	please?
2574	
2575	Mr. Emerson - Sure.
2576	
2577	Mr. Archer - Folks, could you kind of move along? We have other
2578	business to take care of. I apologize, Mr. Secretary. Go right ahead.
2579	
2580	Mr. Emerson - No problem, Mr. Chairman. Not a problem. Again,
2581	REZ2016-00025, Joe Oley.
2582	
2583	REZ2016-00025
2584	Business District, B-2C Business District (Conditional), and O-2 Office District to
2585	B-3C Business District (Conditional) Parcel 755-744-0869 containing 4.27 acres
2586	located at the northwest intersection of Three Chopt and Eastridge Roads. The
2587	applicant proposes a farmers' market. The use will be controlled by proffered
2588	conditions and zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan
2589	recommends Commercial Arterial. The site is located in the Enterprise Zone.
2590	and the second s
2591	Mr. Emerson - The companion case is PUP2016-00006, Joe Oley.
2592	The staff report for both of these items will be presented by Mr. William Moffett.
2593	and the same of th
2594	PUP2016-00006 Joe Oley: Request for a Provisional Use Permit
2595	under Sections 24-62.2(g), 24-120 and 24-122.1 of Chapter 24 of the County
2596	Code in order to operate a farmers' market on part of Parcel 755-744-0869
2597	located at the northwest intersection of Three Chopt and Eastridge Roads. The
2598	existing zoning is B-1 Business District, B-2C Business District (Conditional), and
2599	O-2 Office District. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Commercial
2600	Arterial. The site is located in the Enterprise Zone.
2601	

Mr. Archer - Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Is there anyone present who is opposed to either REZ2016-00025 or PUP2016-00006? No opposition. Go ahead, sir.

Mr. Moffett - Thank you. This is a request to rezone 4.27 acres to allow for the operation of an outdoor farmers' market within the parking area of the Westbury Pharmacy shopping center. Farmers' markets are first permitted in the B-3 District with the approval of a provisional use permit. This presentation incorporates both the rezoning and provisional use permit requests.

The request would rezone the site from O-1 Office, B-1 Business and B-2C Business District (Conditional) to B-3C Business District (Conditional). The applicant has submitted proffers that would limit the B-3 uses to an outdoor farmers' market, a wholesale bakery, and two mobile food units. Other permitted uses and signage would be those allowed in the B-1 District. Hours of operation would be limited to the B-2 standards, which are 6 a.m. to midnight—the same as B-1 as they currently are—with the exception of the Westbury Pharmacy, which has a Provisional Use Permit for extended hours of operation. The proffers would provide the opportunity for other tenants to receive a PUP for extended hours if requested.

The applicant has indicated the farmers' market would operate during the months of August through December on Mondays between 3 p.m. and 6 p.m., so three hours. As shown on this exhibit, the proposed farmers' market would be located in the northern portion of the parking lot of the shopping center. The farmers' market area would be no larger than 7,000 square feet and take up four rows of parking spaces. The market would be protected from vehicle driveways by orange cones, the vendors' personal vehicles, and a mobile food unit, indicated by the yellow rectangle on this layout. Each vendor would be provided a 10-foot-by-10-foot space for their canopy, table, and chairs.

The market would have a market manager on site who would be responsible for ensuring the following:

- The market shall only be in operation a maximum of one day per week August through December;
- · The sale or consumption of alcohol shall be prohibited;
- Artisan vendors shall not exceed 25 percent of the total market area;
- There shall only be one temporary banner or sign limited to 25 square feet in size; and
- There shall not be any outside live music performances or use of a public address system like a megaphone.

The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Commercial Arterial for the subject site and the requests are consistent with that designation. Properly regulated, a farmers' market, wholesale bakery, and mobile food units could be appropriate

2648 2649 2650 2651	the market meets this g	providing additional services to the community. To ensure oal, staff recommends approval of this request subject to d 1 through 11 in the staff report for the provisional use
2652		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2653		sentation. I'd be happy to answer any questions you may
2654	have for me.	
2655 2656	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, sir. Are there questions for Mr. Moffett?
2657	WII. AICHEL -	Thank you, sir. Are there questions for this wonetts
2658	Ms. Jones -	Probably for the applicant more than Mr. Moffett.
2659 2660	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Anyone else?
2661		
2662	Mr. Witte -	I have one. It says August to December. Does that
2663	include December?	
2664		
2665	Mr. Moffett -	To December 31st.
2666	NA- NACH-	December 24st Okay
2667	Mr. Witte -	December 31st. Okay.
2668	Mr. Archer -	Anyone else? Thank you, Mr. Moffett. Do you think
2669 2670	we need to hear from th	
2671	we need to hear from the	ic applicant:
2672	Ms. Jones -	Yes.
2673		
2674	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Will the applicant come down, please?
2675		
2676	Mr. Oley -	I'm Joe Oley.
2677		
2678	Mr. Archer -	Good evening, Mr. Oley.
2679		11.00
2680	Mr. Oley -	Hello.
2681	Mr. Archer -	Ma Jones did you have a question?
2682 2683	Wir. Archer -	Ms. Jones, did you have a question?
2684	Ms. Jones -	Okay. I didn't know if you were going to give us a little
2685		do have some questions, because I want to understand
2686	your operation proposal	
2687	,	
2688	Mr. Oley -	Sure.
2689		
2690	Ms. Jones -	I live very close by, seems to be by this parcel about a
2691	and the second s	it's a very familiar area to me. One other farmers' market
2692		orked on is the West End Famers' Market, which I'm sure
2693	you're familiar with as v	ve think about farmers' markets. There's a lot of benefit to

farmers' markets, but I think a lot of that has to do with the way in which it's 2694 operated, the way in which its standards are set, and the way in which the rules 2695 are proposed and given. So let me ask you, if you don't mind, just so I 2696 understand what you're proposing here. 2697 2698 It seems to me from the site plan I've seen that you've got your vendors, their 2699 vehicles, and the food trucks all plunked into the area near the entrance to the 2700 parking lot. 2701 2702 2703 Mr. Oley -Correct. There are a couple of entrances. 2704 Ms. Jones -But it is near the entrance off of Three Chopt. 2705 2706 Mr. Oley -Yes. 2707 2708 Ms. Jones -The one that people will use if their coming to the 2709 farmers' market or if they're going to the pharmacy or whatever. 2710 2711 Mr. Oley -Correct 2712 2713 Okay. Why Monday? 2714 Ms. Jones -2715 Mr. Oley -That's a good question. Because that's when the 2716 farmers could do it. 2717 2718 Ms. Jones -That's probably the most logical answer, I guess. 2719 Because they're involved in other things on other days? 2720 2721 They are, yes. A lot of these farmers do multiple Mr. Oley -2722 markets. As well as already have the PUP to have the Yoder's doughnut shop 2723 there. And they're there Monday now. So we're consolidating. We're going to get 2724 all of our food done on one day. 2725 2726 Ms. Jones -Okay. I have a bit of a concern about aesthetics and 2727 safety, not necessarily in that order. I guess it would be safety and then 2728 aesthetics. In the other proposal for the West End Farmers' Market, we had an 2729 area far different from this. It obviously could be planted to have borders for the 2730 market. Here, you're talking about using construction cones and the placement of 2731 the vehicles to corral people? 2732 2733 Yes. The way it's going to work is it's going to be a U-Mr. Olev -2734 shaped area, so there's only entrance and exit for our pedestrians on one side of 2735 the market. The farmers or the vendors are going to park their vehicles on the 2736 exterior. And inside of that will be their tents. So the farmers' vehicles are actually 2737 going to provide a barrier so that no other random vehicle may—you'll see on this 2738 diagram. The green cars represent the vendors' vehicles. So they will park and 2739

2740 2741 2742 2743 2744 2745	another vendor that will barrier, if you would. Ar vendors where they will	w one happens to be Yoder's doughnuts or it could be park their vehicle there. So we've formed a vehicular of within that, the blue squares are the tents for the set up. And so we've kind of corralled the market and se four borders with vehicles. We thought that would be
2746 2747 2748 2749 2750 2751		Well I would suggest that little kids sometimes don't n't go between cars. I'm just talking about a mother nings that are there for sale, and she has a child by a e.
2752 2753	Mr. Oley -	Of course.
2754 2755 2756 2757 2758		I understand. So that to me doesn't look like a terribly and forth. And in your rules, you have down here "With up, all vendors must park their vehicles at a nearby by
2759 2760	Mr. Oley -	Yes, that needs to be changed.
2761 2762	Ms. Jones -	This is why I'm getting a little confused.
2763 2764	Mr. Oley -	Right.
2765 2766 2767 2768	Ms. Jones - craft vendors. Can you go that don't agree either all	Okay. Artisans versus miscellaneous vendors versus ahead and define that, because you have percentages over here.
2769 2770 2771 2772	Mr. Oley - don't want to have lots of percent, I believe.	We want primarily food vendors and growers. We fartisans and craftsman. That's why we limited it to 25
2773 2774	Ms. Jones -	Well it's 25 one place and 20 another.
2775 2776 2777 2778	Mr. Oley - it's either 20 or 25, but it's we don't have a very large	I believe staff recommended that also. So I think it's— not going to be more than one or two vendors because e market.
2779 2780	Ms. Jones -	So you're looking to the fresh foods.
2781 2782	Mr. Oley -	Yes. We want to support the local farmers.
2783	Ms. Jones -	One day a week, three hours a day.
2784 2785	Mr. Oley -	Correct.

	0706		
	2786	Ms. Jones -	This is a lot to go through—I get a little nervous about
	2787 2788		parcel for three hours a week.
	2789	B-5—to rezone the entire	balcer for timee flours a week.
	2790	Mr. Oley -	There was the right way to do this and the wrong way,
	2791	-	y, to go through the County. We didn't just want to put
	2792		her people have done. The only way to get this done
	2793		unty. And that's what we're trying to do, we're trying to
	2794		ke sure everything is correct. Now the purpose for the
	2795		ounty said we have to, so that's the process we went
	2796	through.	
	2797		
	2798	Ms. Jones -	You do understand the B-3 implications, though.
	2799		
	2800	Mr. Oley -	Oh, absolutely. Oh sure. That's why we put those
	2801	•	miting everything else to B-1 except for this and the
	2802	bakery and the food truck.	
	2803		
	2804	Ms. Jones -	Do you have people lined up already?
	2805		V-
	2806	Mr. Oley -	Yes.
	2807	Ma Janes	To start as each as this sate through the process?
0	2808	Ms. Jones -	To start as soon as this gets through the process?
	2809 2810	Mr. Oley -	Correct.
	2811	Wil. Oley -	Correct.
	2812	Ms. Jones -	One other thing and then I'll be quiet. I feel like this is
	2813		did spend a lot of time looking at this.
	2814	,,,	
	2815	Mr. Oley -	Well I look forward to seeing you.
	2816		and the state of t
	2817	Ms. Jones -	Where will people use the restroom?
	2818		
	2819	Mr. Oley -	Inside the pharmacy.
	2820		
	2821	Ms. Jones -	Westbury? How about the different vendor tents, will
	2822	there be consistency requi	red or any kind of commonality of signage?
	2823		The standard design of the
	2824	Mr. Oley -	They're the same size.
	2825	Ma Janes	They're the same size? How about the same color,
	2826	Ms. Jones - same quality, same whate	
	2827 2828	same quality, same whate	VOI :
	2829	Mr. Oley -	They're not going to be the same color. They're all the
	2830		have restrictions on the quality, but they have to be
	2831		owing away. All that's in the report.

	on the tents, we kind of feel it's important to have that so that
people know who t	hey're buying from.
Ms. Jones -	Sure.
Mr. Oley -	If you're looking for organically grown, you want to
know that this is an	organically grown farmer or if it's not.
Ms. Jones -	The only other thing is where does the doughnut
truck, for instance,	go after the three hours are up?
Mr. Oley -	Where does he go?
Ms. Jones -	Yes.
Mr. Oley -	I don't know.
Ms. Jones -	It leaves the property totally.
Mr. Oley -	Yes. We have a PUP already approved for him, a
variance. I forget w	that the exact code was. A Conditional Use Permit maybe?
Mr. Emerson -	That's it. You have a Conditional Use Permit for a
emporary use.	
Mr. Oley -	There you go. He's usually out of there by six anyway.
So yes, he'll be go	
Ms. Jones -	And he's there just that one day a week?
Mr. Oley -	Just one day, yes.
Ms. Jones -	But he's there until 6 p.m.
Mr. Oley -	He is, yes.
	, 10 10, 700.
Ms. Jones -	So he's a different deal.
	oo no v a uniorom goal.
Mr. Oley -	Well the market is 3 to 6.
iii. Gioy	From the market to 0 to 0.
Ms. Jones -	Right, right. But he's there earlier? Later?
	ragit, right. Dut no o thore earlier: Later:
Mr. Oley -	Sometimes he's there earlier. So he'll drive his truck
	here you see on the diagram once the market starts.
down and pain it w	note you see on the diagram once the market starts.

2878	Ms. Jones -	And there are two other vendor trucks, food trucks?			
2879	M- 01-	Me would be been the associate for the first of			
2880	Mr. Oley -	We want to have the capacity for two food trucks.			
2881	Ma Janes	Including the designment totals			
2882	Ms. Jones -	Including the doughnut truck.			
2883	Mr. Oley -	Including the doughnut, yes.			
2884 2885	Wil. Oley -	including the doughnut, yes.			
2886	Ms. Jones -	Okay. And where would the other one be parked?			
2887	Wis. Jones -	Oray. And where would the other one be parked?			
2888	Mr. Oley -	We could either park them up butt end to butt or if we			
2889		ouse here, it's easier. If we have to go vertical like this,			
2890	we can park them that way. Or we can park these two end-to-end. The goal of				
2891	that, obviously, was safety. But we're also open to any suggestions of other types				
2892	of barriers that you guys may come up with.				
2893		,			
2894	Ms. Jones -	There are a lot of ideas. There are a lot of things that			
2895	can be done. I'm just concerned that this looks like a parking lot with some tents,				
2896	and I'm not so sure that people won't go between cars, between vendor trucks.				
2897					
2898	Mr. Oley -	Sure, and I agree with your point, and I understand it.			
2899	The other thought to that	is when people park in the parking lot to walk into one			
2900		e same challenges, so walking between cars to get to			
2901	the sidewalk to enter a store. So I don't know that there will be an increased risk.				
2902	But like I said, we're open to any further suggestions of a solid barrier or				
2903	something safer that's also removable.				
2904					
2905	Ms. Jones -	Well, that's it. It's a tricky thing to make it aesthetically			
2906	pleasing as well as safe for those who use it.				
2907					
2908	Mr. Oley -	Well safety was our primary concern and aesthetics			
2909		the appeals of a farmers' market is the variety, it's the			
2910	color, it's the vibrancy. So we don't want to dull it down. I'd like it to be multi-				
2911	colored. I think that is appealing. But we're open.				
2912	Mr. Janes	Well though you for those answers I was concerned			
2913	Ms. Jones -	Well thank you for those answers. I was concerned			
2914	about a number of those it	erns.			
2915	Mrs. Marshall -	Mr. Oley, from listening to you answer questions,			
2916 2917		having more significant barriers in place so it's safer. I			
2917	know that probably everybody up here has had children and they may be grown.				
2919	It's easy to get in. They're not big; they don't need a big space to get where they				
2920	want to go.	mer and, and, and a many opened to get mind of			
2921					
2922	Mr. Oley -	Sure.			
2022		TO THE STATE OF TH			

2924 2925		If we did pass this along, are you willing to address each the Supervisor level?
2926 2927	Mr. Oley -	We're willing to work with you guys, sure.
2928 2929 2930 2931 2932	Mrs. Marshall - grass? Look at the pictur you're going to turn—	Okay. Can you explain why can we not use the e to the right. So if you're coming off Three Chopt and
2933 2934	Mr. Oley -	Right over here?
2935 2936	Mrs. Marshall -	Yes. And you're going to turn right, right there.
2937 2938 2939 2940 2941 2942 2943	Ideally, I would have preferred to have been in the t setback from the perimeter of the property line, which he parking lot. I would love to find some variance to that, a a lot of problems. When you look at the picture to the attle daycare. The big grassy space in between would But again, the setback was in the way.	
2944 2945 2946	Mrs. Marshall - between you and Kroger?	Okay. Who owns the space behind the pharmacy,
2947 2948 2949	Mr. Oley - the space? The parking a	Who owns the space? We do, I think. Which part of rea?
2950 2951 2952	Mrs. Marshall - probably point it out to yo	If you go behind Westbury Pharmacy—Billy can u.
2953 2954 2955	Billy - right here.	[Off microphone.] I think she's talking about this area
2956 2957	Mr. Oley -	Okay. That space is owned by Kroger.
2958 2959 2960	Mrs. Marshall - right now?	It is owned by Kroger. Okay. Do they use that space
2961 2962 2963	Mr. Oley - Some type of staging for	They are using it for something, I don't know what. construction, I think.
2964 2965	Mrs. Marshall -	Okay.
2966 2967 2968	Mr. Oley - there.	But no, it's typically never parked. It's just a vacant lot
2969	Mrs. Marshall -	But they are using it at this time.

29				
29	71 Mr. Ole	y -	They are.	
29				
29	73 Mrs. Ma	arshall -	Okay. That would be ideal.	
29	74			
29	75 Mr. Ole	y -	Well, you would think so.	
29	76			
29	77 Mrs. Ma	arshall -	But you would still need safety barriers.	
29	78			
29	79 Mr. Ole	y -	Absolutely. But there's no frontage.	
29	80			
29	81 Mrs. Ma	arshall -	Correct.	
29	82			
29	83 Mr. Ole	y -	No one can see that it's there.	
29	84			
29	85 Mrs. Ma	arshall -	Good point. That's a very good point.	
29	86			
29		abough -	A quick question. Ms. Jones brought up a good point.	
29	88 Why di	d you choose to lo	cate closer to the entrance instead of in the middle of	
29	89 the lot t	there?		
29	90			
29	91 Mr. Ole	y -	It's the least parked area in the lot. The least	
29	92 contigu	ous space—the lea	ast parked contiguous space.	
29	93			
29	94 Mr. Lea	abough -	Because of the proximity to the pharmacy?	
29	95			
29	96 Mr. Ole	ey -	Yes, to the stores that are there.	
29	97			
29	98 Mr. Lea	abough -	So it's easier for folks to park closer to the door for the	
29	99 pharma	асу.		
30	000			
30	01 Mr. Ole	ey -	It is. And you wouldn't want your grandmother with	
30	02 her har	her handicap vehicle having to park 50 more additional yards. We have a lot of		
30	og elderly	elderly and sick people that visit our shopping center.		
30	004			
30	005 Mr. Lea	abough -	So there is a method to the madness in terms of	
30	006 where i	it's located.		
30	007			
30	008 Mr. Ole	ey -	There is a method to why we chose that spot. It was	
30		st available.		
30	010			
30	11 Mrs. M	arshall -	Thank you.	
)12			
30	Mr. Lea	abough -	Do you mind pulling up the concept plan again,	
	please			
30	015			

3016	Mr. Oley -	Can you tell me which one it is?
3017	,	
3018	Mr. Leabough -	It says "Exhibit A Concept."
3019		CONTRACTOR
3020	Mr. Oley -	Okay.
3021		
3022	Mr. Leabough -	Where is your entrance? Can you point that out?
3023		
3024	Mr. Oley -	The entries to the shopping center?
3025		
3026	Mr. Leabough -	To the pharmacy.
3027		
3028	Mr. Oley -	The pharmacy is approximately right here.
3029		
3030	Mr. Leabough -	Okay.
3031		
3032	Mr. Oley -	And then we have other stores. The shopping center
3033	is fully leased all the way	down here. So these are all parked as well. This space
3034		cant, which means no one's parking here.
3035		
3036	Mr. Leabough -	And the reason that you couldn't put the vendors
3037	along the edge of the park	king lot there?
3038		
3039	Mr. Oley -	Along here?
3040		
3041	Mr. Leabough -	Yes.
3042		
3043	Mr. Oley -	The 50-foot setback.
3044		
3045	Mr. Leabough -	So that's the issue. Okay. And you can't put them
3046	along the roadway as wel	1?
3047		
3048	Mr. Oley -	Correct. Fifty-foot setback. There were two ideal
3049	spots—the grassy spot or	ver here we discussed and this corner right here, which
3050	is out of traffic pattern.	
3051		
3052	Mr. Leabough -	But still the setback issue.
3053		
3054	Mr. Oley -	The setback.
3055		
3056	Mr. Leabough -	What if you shifted them over one space?
3057	S. Let	
3058	Mr. Oley -	Over to these two spaces?
3059	And American	End delated
3060	Mr. Leabough -	To the left. Yes.

	3062	Mr. Oley -	This is always parked. Here's the pharmacy's door.		
_	3063	2	always full. And then we have the nail salon which fills		
	3064	up most of these, as well as the urgent care center in the shopping center. So the			
	3065	vacant spots are along the perimeter of the parking center, which we can't use,			
	3066	and right here.			
	3067				
	3068	Mr. Leabough -	But you could consolidate it to the two interior parcels		
	3069	and then park the vehicles other places, if you're able to put the borders I think			
	3070	the concern centers aroun	nd. Then you don't have that space issue. Where your		
	3071	mouse is, if you just put y	our vendors there and put borders around it, then you		
	3072	don't have the entrance to the site and the market in close proximity. Or as close			
	3073	proximity.			
	3074				
	3075	Mr. Oley -	So you mean just use this one parking bay?		
	3076				
	3077		Yes. And park your vendor vehicles somewhere else		
	3078	and not use them to kind	of create that perimeter. Use something different, like		
	3079	something more appropriate for a perimeter.			
	3080				
	3081		We're willing to discuss anything. We looked at		
	3082	different barriers. We looked at hay bales. It's not going to stop a car. We've			
	3083	looked at tape, police tape, cones.			
	3084				
_	3085	9	Oh, I don't think anybody thinks that anything is going		
	3086	to stop a car unless it's a brick wall.			
	3087				
	3088	Mr. Oley -	Another car would. But again, we'll work with		
	3089	anybody.			
	3090		and the second of the second o		
	3091	Mr. Leabough -	Slow it down, maybe. But if it hits it at any rate of		
	3092	speed, it's still going to move.			
	3093				
	3094	Mr. Oley -	Sure.		
	3095		I think that have falls marks will and that if the mayor		
	3096	Mr. Leabough -	I think that hopefully people will see that if it's moved		
	3097	one bay over, you don't have that issue of people pulling in at a higher rate of speed. If they're in the parking lot, you hope that they're going pretty slow. So if			
	3098	speed. If they're in the pa	irking lot, you nope that they re going pretty slow. So if		
	3099	they do nit someone, they	're not hitting them at 20 or 30 miles an hour.		
	3100	Mr. Olovi	Cura cura That makes conse		
	3101	Mr. Oley -	Sure, sure. That makes sense.		
	3102	Ma Janea	I'm not an expert on what kind of things can be used		
	3103	Ms. Jones -	for safety purposes. I hadn't thought of hay bales until		
	3104	as temporary screening i	, defined, soft enough for people to bump them but still		
	3105	allow—vou want visibility	of your vendor spaces in order to make it successful.		
	3106	allow—you want visibility	or your veridor spaces in order to make it succession.		

Vehicles tend to mask that visibility. I have a concern with those. Certainly big 3108 vehicles, if somebody uses a truck to bring their things to market, that's a big 3109 vehicle there and does mask that. I don't know whether there are mobile 3110 planters. Construction cones to me don't seem very appealing and famers' 3111 marketish. But that's just my aesthetic. This is your project. I would hope that 3112 there could be a configuration that works. To me, this configuration isn't quite 3113 ready to roll. It seems there is probably room for improvement here for safety 3114 purposes. And I do understand you're constrained with the setbacks. I 3115 understand that. That is what it is. 3116 3117 Mr. Olev -It is what it is, you're right. 3118 3119 Mr. Archer -All right. Anything further? Mrs. Marshall. 3120 3121 Mrs. Marshall -Mr. Chairman, I move that REZ2016-00025, Joe Oley, 3122 move forward to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval 3123 subject to the proffers dated July 28, 2016, as noted in the staff report, and the 3124 conditions that we discussed this evening on a more secure barrier around the 3125 entire perimeter. 3126 3127 Second. Mr. Leabough -3128 3129 3130 Mr. Archer -All right. Motion by Mrs. Marshall and seconded by Mr. Leabough. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. 3131 3132 Ms. Jones -No 3133 3134 Mr. Archer -Okay. The vote is 4 to 1. Is that correct? Okay. The 3135 motion passes. 3136 3137 The vote was as follows: 3138 3139 Mr. Archer - Yes 3140 3141 Ms. Jones - No Mr. Leabough - Yes 3142 Mrs. Marshall - Yes 3143 Mr. Witte - Yes 3144 3145 REASON -Acting on a motion by Mrs. Marshall, seconded by Mr. 3146 3147 Leabough, the Planning Commission voted 4-1-1 (one abstention) to recommend the Board of Supervisors grant the request because of the assurances provided 3148 and because this request is consistent with the goals of the 2026 Comprehensive 3149 Plan and Enterprise Zone. 3150

Mr. Emerson -

Provisional Use Permit.

3151

3152

3153

Mr. Chairman, we also need a motion on the

31	54			
31	55 Mr. Archer -	Okay. Mrs. Marshall.		
31	56			
31		Mr. Chairman, I move that PUP2016-00006, Joe		
31	58 Oley, move forward	to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of		
31	59 approval subject to the	he 11 conditions in the staff report and the conditions set		
31	60 forth this evening.			
31	61			
31	62 Mr. Witte -	Second.		
31				
31	64 Mr. Archer -	Motion by Mrs. Marshall, seconded by Mr. Witte. All in		
31	65 favor say aye. All opp	osed say no.		
31				
31	67 Ms. Jones -	No.		
31				
31		Okay. The vote is 4 to 1, the motion passes.		
31				
31		The vote was as follows:		
31				
31				
31				
31				
31				
31				
31		Antino an a mation by Man Manchall accorded by Ma		
31		Acting on a motion by Mrs. Marshall, seconded by Mr.		
31		commission voted 4-1-1 (one abstention) to recommend the		
31		grant the request because of the assurances provided with		
31		ning case (REZ2016-00025) and because this request is pals of the 2026 Comprehensive Plan.		
31	Control of the Contro	dais of the 2020 Comprehensive Plant.		
31		Mr. Chairman, we now move on to the next item,		
31		029, Joshua Thornhill. The staff report will be presented by		
31		1029, Joshua Thorninii. The stail report will be presented by		
31				
	89 REZ2016-00029	Joshua Thornhill: Request to amend proffered		
31		with rezoning case C-7C-81 on part of Parcel 752-756-4991		
31		east intersection of Mayland Court and Independence Park		
31		proposes to amend Proffer 3 related to prohibited uses. The		
31		existing zoning is M-1C Light Industrial District (Conditional). The 2026		
31	0 0	recommends Office/Service.		
31				
	96 Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Is there anyone present		
		Z2016-00029, Joshua Thornhill? All right. Ms. Puckett, how		
	98 are you?			

3200	Ms. Puckett -	I'm fine, thank you.
3201		A second control of the control of t
3202	Mr. Archer -	Go right ahead.
3203		
3204	Ms. Puckett -	All right. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of
3205	the Commission.	
3206		and the second s
3207	The applicant is reques	sting to amend proffered conditions accepted with rezoning
3208		cally, this case would amend proffer #3, which addresses
3209	excluded uses on the p	property.
3210		
3211		-1C and consists of an office/warehouse condominium
3212	development known as	s Deep Run Trade Center. The unit in which the Escape
3213		located is adjacent to other office/warehouse units. The
3214		ed primarily by non-residential uses, with the exception of
3215	a single-family subdivis	sion to the east.
3216	2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
3217		ccepted with case C-7C-81 excludes indoor recreation,
3218		rmined to preclude the proposed use of the space for
3219		Should the proffer amendment be approved, it would only
3220	allow indoor recreation	in the form of this escape room use.
3221		
3222		sive Plan's recommended future land use for the subject
3223		rice. This request is generally consistent with the Plan's
3224	recommendations.	
3225		
3226		nature of the surrounding development, and the fact that
3227		to the building are proposed, it is not anticipated that the
3228		an escape room activity will have adverse effects on
3229		s. Staff believes the requested proffer amendment is
3230	reasonable given the surrounding zoning and minor expected impacts, and	
3231	therefore supports this	request.
3232		
3233	This concludes my pre-	sentation and I would be happy to answer any questions.
3234	10.70-0	
3235	Mr. Archer -	Thank you, Ms. Puckett. Are there questions from the
3236	Cornmission?	
3237	257 797 717	
3238	Mrs. Marshall -	I would love for you to explain to everyone what an
3239		use I can tell you, when I read it, I had no idea what that
3240	meant. So if you do no	t mind.
3241	1.0 E S	
3242	Ms. Puckett -	Of course.
3243		
3244	Mr. Leabough -	You didn't see the show?

	I did not see the show; must have missed it.	
Ms. Puckett - thing that's kind of gotte different themed rooms have all groups of people So it's team-building exe	I think part of that is because this is a relatively new en big in the last year or so. There are usually several in the building. It's a puzzle-solving game where you come and solve puzzles to escape from a locked room. reises and that kind of thing.	
Mrs. Marshall -	Thank you.	
Mr. Archer -	Okay.	
Ms. Jones - about the increase in the Richmond. Even to Richr	I think I read an article, and it may have been online, a numbers of these operations that are coming, even to mond. Yes.	
Mr. Archer - Mrs. Marshall, are you re	All right, any further questions for Ms. Puckett? ady?	
Mrs. Marshall -	I am.	
Mr. Archer -	Okay.	
Mrs. Marshall - Thornhill, move forward approval with amended report.	Mr. Chairman, I move that REZ2016-00029, Joshua to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of proffer #3 dated July 27, 2016, as stated in the staff	
Mr. Leabough -	Second.	
Mr. Archer - Mr. Leabough. All in fav motion passes.	Motion by Mrs. Marshall and seconded by or say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the	
REASON - Acting on a motion by Mrs. Marshall, seconded by Mr. Leabough, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the Board of Supervisors grant the request because it was determined to be reasonable, and it is not expected to adversely impact surrounding land uses in the area.		
Mr. Emerson - talked about earlier du discussions regarding th the other on front porche in your schedule, to con	Mr. Chairman, the item is a discussion item. As we ring the work session, we will need to continue our two potential code amendments, one on signage and es on dwellings. I would like for the Commission, if it fits insider coming back together at 5:30 p.m. prior to your next month.	
	Ms. Puckett - thing that's kind of gotte different themed rooms have all groups of people So it's team-building exe Mrs. Marshall - Mr. Archer - Ms. Jones - about the increase in the Richmond. Even to Richr Mr. Archer - Mrs. Marshall - Mrs. Marshall - Mrs. Marshall - Thornhill, move forward approval with amended report. Mr. Leabough - Mr. Archer - Mr. Leabough - Mr. Archer - Mr. Leabough All in fav motion passes. REASON - Leabough, the Planning the Board of Supervisor reasonable, and it is not the area. Mr. Emerson - talked about earlier du discussions regarding th the other on front porche in your schedule, to con in your schedule, to con	

3292		
3293	Ms. Jones -	Good.
3294	1110. 001100	
3295	Mr. Emerson -	If that fits, a general consensus is fine. It doesn't
3296	require a motion, but I wou	
3297		
3298	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Does that suit everybody?
3299		
3300	Mr. Leabough -	Sure.
3301		
3302	Ms. Jones -	Yes sir.
3303		
3304	Mr. Archer -	All right. Dinner will be served.
3305	11 4 1	All and the second seco
3306	Mr. Emerson -	We're all set. We'll take care of it.
3307	Formula	TO STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PA
3308	Mr. Emerson -	Then your next item on the agenda, Mr. Chairman, is
3309		pproval of your minutes from the July 14, 2016 meeting.
3310	You do have an errata she	eet this evening.
3311	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Any discussion on the minutes? We have two
3312 3313		sheet. Anyone have anything else?
3314	corrections on the errata s	sheet. Anyone have anything else:
3315	Mr. Leabough -	I move that minutes be approved as corrected.
3316		
3317	Mrs. Marshall -	Second.
3318		
3319	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Motion by Mr. Leabough and seconded by
3320	Mrs. Marshall. All in favor	r of approval of the minutes say aye. All opposed say
3321	no. The ayes have it, the	minutes stand approved.
3322		
3323	Mr. Emerson -	Mr. Chairman, I have nothing further for the
3324	Commission this evening.	
3325		The control of the co
3326	Mr. Archer -	We will immediately adjourn.
3327		$\rho = \rho = \rho$
3328		
3329		11/11/1/12-
3330 3331		McC. W. Archer, C.P.C., Chairman
3332		WICO. W. Alcher, C.F.C., Chairman
3333		
3334		156/
3335		1/1
3336		Mr. Joseph Emerson, Jr. Secretary
3337		